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www.billingsschools.org

December 15, 2011

Teresa Stroebe, Chair
Members of the Board of Trustees and Billings Community
Billings Public Schools (School District #2)
415 North 30th Street
Billings, Montana 59101

Dear Board Members and Billings Community:

We are pleased to present to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for Billings Public Schools for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011. The purpose of this report is to provide the Board of Trustees,district management, voters, grantor agencies,
and other interested parties with reliable financial information about Billings Public Schools. This report presents complete infomnation
about the districts financial position at year-end and financial activities during fiscal year 2011.

Responsibility for the accuracy of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the school district's Financial Services
Department who prepared this report. We believe the information, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects, and is presented in
a manner to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the district. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an adequate understanding of the districts financial activities have been included.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires a Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) that includes a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediately following the auditor's report in the financial
section.

Billings Public Schools engaged EideBailly LLP, an independent auditor, to conduct the district's audit for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011. The auditors' report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

PROFILE OF THE DISTRICT

Geographically, Billings Public Schools covers an area greater than the city of Billings. The school system includes two legally separate
districts, Elementary District NO.2 and High School District No.2. The Elementary District covers approximately 93 square miles and
has an estimated population of 107,934. The High School District covers approximately 740 square miles, and encompasses nine
elementary districts including; Billings, Lockwood, Elder Grove, Elysian, Canyon Creek, Morin, Yellowstone Academy, Independent,
and Blue Creek. The estimated population of the High School District is 123,145.

The school system is a public entity under the authority of the state of Montana. The Eiementary District No.2 and High School District
No.2 are separate legal entities that make up one independent reporting entity within the criteria established in section 2100 of the
Codification of Govemmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

The Elementary District is governed by a board of seven trustees elected by the voters of single member districts of the Billings
Elementary District. The High School District is governed by a board of nine trustees that include the seven Elementary District trustees
and two additional trustees elected by voters in the other elementary districts. The superintendent, who acts as chief administrative
officer, is selected by the board of trustees. Dr. Keith Beeman was the superintendent during the period examined in this report. He
and the Billings Board of Trustees reached a mutual contract release effective November 1, 2011. Mr. Jack Copps, the retired
superintendent who served previous to Dr. Beeman, has returned to the Billings School District assuming interim superintendent duties
for the duration of the 2011-12 school year. Another change in leadership occurred at the board level with the resignation of Board
Chair Barb Bryan in November 2011. Trustee Teresa Stroebe was elected as the new Board Chair to serve until the annual
reorganization meeting in May.

All funds of the district are included in this report. The district serves over approximately 16,000 students and providing a full range of
educational services appropriate to grade levels from pre-kindergarten through 12th grade, as well as adult education. These include
regular and enriched academic education, special education, and occupational education. These basic programs are supplemented by
a wide variety of offerings in fine arts, athletics, and other specific student based clubs.

The school aged population peaked in the state of Montana in the mid-1990s. Since then most districts have dropped in enrollment to
varying degrees impacting their funding, staffing, and educational offerings. The Billings School District was not immune as it dropped
and eventually reached a plateau. The 2011-12 school year has seen a resurgence in growth with over 300 additional students, most
of whom are enrolled in the elementary district. Consistent with other AA school districts in the state, the Billings Board of Trustees will
monitor this growth and related financial implications.
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The district has aging buildings with the oldest building constructed in 1910 and most recent built in 1987. There have been additions
made to the buildings over the years and currently bond proceeds are being used to update various facilities. The district has 17 schooi
buildings currently running at over 100% current functional capacity. .

The activities of the Billings Education Foundation, Ves for Kids, and the various parent organizations are separate legal entities. The
impacts of these individual entities are considered immaterial to the overall financial status of the district and, as SUCh, are not included
in these financial statements.

The district is required by state law to annually adopt budgets for certain funds, generally those supported by property taxes. The
elementary and high school board of trustees must meet to legally adopt final revenue budgets on or before August 25th immediately
preceding the school year. The primary building blocks of the district's overall financial planning include appropriated governmental
funds for: General, Transportation, TUition, Retirement, Technology Acquisition, Adult Education, Flexibility, Debt Service, and Building
Reserve. It should be noted that proposed expenditure budgets were available in August 2011, however the board only approved the
revenue budgets per state law. A return to a fonmal budgeting committee to reView proposed expenditures, which had been suspended
in the 2010-11 school year for FY 12, is recommended.

In 2010, the district garnered community support with the passage of an elementary general fund levy, a high school technology levy,
and a $12 million bond levy, specifically QZAB and QSCB bonds in the amounts of $4.42 million for tile elementary district and $7.58
million for the high school district.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Local Economy
The Billings School District is located in south-central Montana within Vellowstone County. Billings is the major city, serves as the
county seat, and is the largest city in Montana. The County has more than 14.5% of the State's population and has grown by almost
12% over the last 10 years.

The personal income base has expanded considerably since the early 1990's in the County, resulting in continuous economic
expansion. Industries that markedly impact the local economy include those industries associated with trade center activities,
agriculture, energy, and tourism and travel. The Billings area is a regional center for the energy industry With three major oil refineries
located within the County. Good transportation access contributes to the area's economic activity. Interstate highways intersect near
the city, and the city is serviced by three major airline carriers. The city is a major trade center for eastern Montana and northern
Wyoming. The absence of a sales tax attracts customers from northern Wyoming. Trade center activities are anchored by the city's
status as a regional medical center. Agriculture is a significant economic force in the County. An important component of the area's
economy is tourism and conventions with a nearby national park and three winter ski areas. The newly renovated Rimrock Auto Arena
is a multi-use facility that seats 12,000 people and contains a large area for exhibitions. Three higher education facilities are located in
the city. Each institution offers both two-year and four-year degrees, as well as graduate programs.

Financial Information
Management of the district is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control system designed to ensure that the assets
of the district are protected from losses, theft or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of the control should
not exceed the benefit likely to be derived and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.
All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the district's internal accounting controls adequately
safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of accurate recording of financial transactions.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the district is also required to undergo a single audit in conformity with
provisions of the single audit act of 1984, replaced by the single audit act amendment of 1996, and U.S. Office of Management and "
Budget A-t33 (revised 6/30/1997), Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

The analysis of balances and transactions of the individual funds are presented in detail in the MD&A.

Montana law requires that Billings Public Schools pUblish audited financial statements within six months of the close of each fiscal year.
This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report exceeds that requirement. The scope of the audit concentrates on the following areas:

1. Management Section: report on compliance with laws and regUlations and report on the internal control structure.
2. Financial Section: report on financial statements in accordance with GAAP.
3. Single Audit Section (Revised OMB A-133): report on financial statements, internal control, compliance, audit findings and

questioned costs.

These requirements have been complied With, and the auditor's opinion has been included in this report.

Certificates of Excellence
The Association of School Business Officials Internationai (ASBO) has awarded the Meritorious Budget Award for excellence in the
preparation and issuance of Billings Public Schools annual bUdgets for the fiscal 2007, 2008, 2009, and 2010 years.
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This report has been prepared foliowing guidelines recommended by the Government Finance Office Association (GFOA) of the United
States for its Certificate of Achievement for Excelience in Financial Reporting program and also foliowing guidelines recommended by
ASBO for its Certificate of Excelience in Financial Reporting. This is the fifth year that Biliings Public Schools has submitted its report to
these organizations. The school district was recognized by both organizations for the fiscal 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 submissions.
Both awards are valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the ASBO and GFOA
requirements, and we will submit it for determination of its eligibility for renewed awards.

Acknowledgements
The preparation of the annual financial report was made possibie by the dedicated efforts of the Financial Services Department.

In closing, we would like to thank the trustees for their interest and support in pianning and conducting the operations of the district in a
responsible manner.

Respectfuliy SUbmitted,

. Josh Middleton
Assistant SuperintendentlCFO

Patricia Hubbard
Director of Business Services
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Trustees
Billings Public Schools
Billings, Montana

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Billings Public Schools, Billings,
Montana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011 which collectively comprise the Billings
Public School's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of Billings Public School's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position ofthe governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Billings Public Schools, as of June 30,2011, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As discnssed in Note 1 to the financial statements, Billings Public Schools adopted the provisions
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which establishes criteria for classifYing fund balances into
specifically defmed classifications and clarifies definitions for governmental fund types. Our
opinion on the financial statements is not modified with respect to that matter.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 15,2011 on our consideration of Billings Public School's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performedin accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

www.eidebailly.com

401 N. 31 sl SI., Ste. 1120 I P.O. Box 7112 I Billings, MT 591 03-7112 I TF 800.824.9797 I T406.896.2400 I F406.252.8600 I EOE -1 0-



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
mauagement's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of funding
progress and employer contributions on pages 12 through 22 and 47 through 48 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part ofthe basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica, which consisted of inquiries ofmanagement
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit ofthe basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Billings Public Schools financial statements as a whole. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, supporting
schedules, State ofMontana mandated schedules of changes in fiduciary net assets
(extracurricular) and enrollment schedule, statistical section, and schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements,
supporting schedules, State of Montana mandated schedules of changes iu fiduciary net assets
(extracurricular), and schedule of expeuditures of federal awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the :fmancial statements as a whole. The introductory,
enrollment schedule and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Billings, Montana
December 15, 2011
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The following discussion and anaiysis of Billings Public Schools' (referred to as the "the district" or the "government") financiai
performance provides an overview of the district's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2011. We encourage the
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional infonnation presented in the financial
statements and footnotes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o Revenues from govemmental activities increased $6.1 million (from 2010 to 2011) to $148.7 million. This represents a
4.3% increase compared to the prior year.

o Governmental activity expenditures increased $5.7 million over 2010 to $152.7 million. This represents a 3.8%
increase over the prior year.

o At year-end, the governmental funds reported total fund balances of $31.1 million, an increase of $9.8 million over the
prior year.

o The 2011 general fund expenditure budget was $102.5 million, an increase of $5.3 million or 5.5% over the prior year.

o In 2011 the district began renovation and energy upgrades in specific buildings as a result of the approval of the 2010
$12 million bonds.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial statements
and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different
views of the district:

The first two statements are government-wide
financial statements that provide both short-term
and long-term information about the district's
overall financial status.

The remaining statements are fund financial
statements that focus on individual parts of the
district, reporting the district's operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements.

• The governmental funds statements tell how
basic services like regular and special
education were financed in the short-term as
well as what remains for future spending.

• The proprietary funds statements provide
information on internal service funds used to
provide services to all other district funds.

• Fiduciary funds statements provide
information about the financial relationships in
which the district acts solely as a trustee or
agent for the benefit of others.

The financial statements also include notes that
explain some information in the statements and
provide more detailed data.

The statements are followed by a section of
required supplementary infonnation that further
explains and supports the financial statements
with a comparison of the district's budget to actual
amounts for the year.

Figure A-1
Organization of Billings Public Schools Annual

Financial Report

~
Management's Basic Financial Required
Discussion and Statements Supplementary

Analysis Information

/ ~
/~ I

District-wide Fund Financial Notes to
Financial Statements Financial

Statements Statements

Figure A-1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are
arranged and related to one another.
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, BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

FigureA-2
Major Features of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government~wjde

statements Governmental Funds Fiduciary Funds

Scope Entire District The activities of the district that are not Instances in which the district administers
(except fiduciary funds) proprietary or fiduciary, such as special resources on behalf of someone else,

education and building maintenance such as scholarship programs and student
activities monies

Required financial Statement of net assets Balance sheet Statement of fiduciary net assets

statements Statement of activities Statement of revenues, expenditures Statement of changes in fiduciary net
and changes in fund balances assets

Accounting basis and Accrual accounting and Modified accrual accounting Accrual accounting and

measurement focus economic resources focus and current financial resources economic resources focus

focus

Type of assetlJiabiJity All assets and liabilities, both Generally assets expected to be used All assets and liabilities, both short-term
information financial and capital, short- up and liabilities that come due during and long-term. Funds do not currently

term and long-term the year or soon thereafter, no capital contain capital assets, although they can
assets or long-term liabilities included

.

Type of All revenues and expenses Revenues for which cash is received All additions and deductions during the·
inflow/outflow during year, regardless of during or soon after the end of the year, regardless of when cash is received
information when cash is received or paid year, expenditures when goods or or paid

services have been received and the
related liability is due and payable

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the districfs financial statements, including the portion of the district's activities they cover
and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management's discussion and analysis highlights
the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Government-wide financial statements One of the most important questions asked about the district's finances is, "Is the
government, as a whole, better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities (pages 23 and 24) report information about the district as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this
question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when
cash is received or paid. These two statements report the net assets and changes in them. You can think of net assets-the difference
between assets and liabilities-as one way to measure the district's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets are one indicator of whether the district's financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider
Dther nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the properiy tax base, economy, enrollment and the State's funding of
educational costs to assess the district's overall health.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Fund financial statements The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds-not the district
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. Also, the governing body establishes many other funds to help it
control and manage money for particular purposes or to meet legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money. The
district utilizes the following funds:

Governmental funds-Basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money ftows into and out of those
funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements (pages 25 and 27) provide a detailed short-term view of the general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more. or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governrnental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliations (pages
26 and 28, respectively).

Proprietary funds-The district maintains one proprietary fund type which contains internal service funds. Internal service funds are
an accounting device used to accumulaie and allocate costs internally among the district's various functions. When the district
charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or to other departments of the district, these services
are generally reported in proprietary funds. The district uses three internal service funds (two insurance funds and one purchasing
fund) to account for services provided to the other funds of the district. The internal service funds use the same accounting method
as the government-wide statements and are included with the governmental activities shown on those statements.

The three internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29, 30 and 31 of this report. The district has no material
business-type activities.

Fiduciary funds-Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds use the accrual basis of accounting. The district excludes these activities from the other financial statements because it
cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The district is responsible for ensuring that the assets are used for their intended
purposes.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE AS OF JUNE 30,2011

Following are condensed schedules of net assets and changes in net assets;

NETASSETS;

Current and other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Other liabilities

Long-term liabilities outstanding

Total liabilities

Governmental Activities

2011 2010

$ 41,000,860 $ 30,138,558

61,732,136 61,837,486

102,732,996 91,976,044

4,509,996 3,704,645

44,197,109 30,185,545

48,707,105 33,890,190

Net assets;

Invested In capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

59,798,909

7,457,520

(13,230,538)

$ 54,025,891

60,775,788

13,131,943

(15,821,877)

$ 58,085,854
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS: Governmental Activities

2011 2010

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 3,166,703 $ 3,237,009

Operatin9 grants and contributions 37,940,966 33,980,885

Capital grants and contributions 77,586 77,188

General revenues:

Taxes 38,512,088 35,921,360

State sources 53,750,824 55,442,478

County sources 13,525,559 12,124,782

Interest 293,422 411,620

Contributions and donations 1,146,735 937,984

Miscellaneous 269,744 459,324

Total revenues 148,683,627 142,592,630

Expenses:

Instruction 94,100,760 91,294,560

Support services:

Students 10,978,889 10,384,550

Instructional staff 7,541,224 7,115,837

General administration 1,559,394 1,807,281

Administration 10,149,144 9,642,520

Business 2,258,772 1,948,020

Operation and maintenance 12,244,035 12,232,630

Student transportation 5,220,799 5,037,035

Food services 5,872,264 5,253,191

Community services 30,563 26,363

Extracurricular 2,458,540 2,351,072

Other current charges 12,874 12,350

Interest on long-term debt 316,332 46,167

Total expenses 152,743,590 146,951,576

Change in net assets (4,059,963) (4,358,946)

Net assets, beginning 58,085,854 62,444,800

Net assets, ending $ 54,025,891 $ 58,085,854
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements provide information about the
activities of the district as a whole and present a longer-term view of the finances. For govemmental activities, fund statements tell how
these services were financed In the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the
district's operations In more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the most significant funds. The
remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the district acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit
olthose outside of the district.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Our anaiysis focuses on the district's net assets and changes in net assets. The 2011 expenses exceeded revenue by $4.1 million .

Revenue
Expenses
Surplus/Deficit

2011

$ 148,683,627 $
152,743,590

$ (4,059,963) $

2010

142,592,630
146,951,576

(4,358,946)

. % Change

4.3%
3.9%
6.9%

Total revenues increased by 4.3% due to remaining one-time-only funds and the passage of local levies. Expenditures continue to
exceed revenue in 2011 for the seventh consecutive year. The district will continue to work on a plan to address this growth of
expenditures.

Net assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and capital assets net of liabilities. In 2011, net assets decreased by the $4.1 million
operating deficit.

2011 2010 Change

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 59,798,909 $ 60,775,788 $ (976,879)

Restricted for:

Debt service 118,322 119,793 (1,471)

Other purposes 7,339,198 13,012,150 (5,672,952)

Unrestricted (deficit) (13,230,538) (15,821,877) 2,591,339

Total governmental activities net assets $ 54,025,8.91 $ 58,085,854 $ (4,059,963)

The district uses its assets to proVide services to students and the community. At the close of the 2011 fiscal year the district had $54.0
million in net assets. The signification variation in the categories of net assets Is a result of the GASS 54 changes that state how these
are classified.

The largest portion of the district's net assets ($59.8 million) are capital assets which include investments in land, buildings, equipment,
Improvements, and infrastructure less any outstanding debt used to acquire the assets. Most of these capital assets do not generate
revenue and instead generate future liabilities because of the associated maintenance costs. Under state law the facilities and
equipment which are used to provide services to students and the community can only be sold if the asset is declared to be surplus
property. Future funding to complete the required maintenance of assets and to retire the remaining debt related to acquisition of these
assets must be provided from unreserved amounts from the district's different funding sources. The district has an estimated $123
million in deferred maintenance costs. The district budgeted $500,000 in its general fund for on-going maintenance in 2011. The
district issued $12.0 million bonds in fiscal year2011 to address a portion olthe deferred maintenance costs.

The 2011 net assets restricted for debt service or other purposes totaling $7.5 million cannot be reallocated to cover other district
expenses.

Unrestricted net assets can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, legislative
restrictions, or other legal requirements. The current unrestricted balance is a deficit of $13.2 million and represents unfunded
estimated future pension related liabilities. This deficit decreased by $2.6 million, or 19.6%, in 2011 due primarily to amortization
related to the service credit and termination pay benefits plan, compensated absences, and other postempioyment benefits (See Note
4). The district expects this deficit to increase in future years unless the District begins funding these plans. The district historically has
maintained a policy of pay-as-you-go for the service credit, compensated absences, termination pay benefits and other
postemployment benefits. The district budgeted $3.2 million to cover the estimated current costs in 2011 (See Note 4). This obligation
will be met using cash balances from different funding sources.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The district's unfunded liability for the service credit and termination pay benefits p[en, compensated absences and other
postemployment benefits (OPES) is $71.3 million. The liability [s funded on a pay-as-you-go basis rather than an actuarial basis with
the reasonable expectation that projected benefits disbursements will increase sUbstantially. The financial statement amortization of this
liability disregards the average number of years before retirement of the district's employees. The district's retirement plans may be
unsustainable at current benefit leve[s. The district will need to address the sustainability of these benefits programs.

Net assets from governmental activities had a change of $4.1 million in 2011. This change was primarily due to the increase in
expenses.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant sources of funds. To be reported as a major fund,
total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures of an individual fund must contribute at least 10 percent of the corresponding total
(assets, liabilities, etc.) for all funds. Individual funds are generally allocated or designated for special purposes and in some instances
have a mix of restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances. Due to GASB 54 the classification of how fund balances
are reported has changed. The fund balances for FY2010 were $21.6 million, while FY2011 total were $31.1 million. The major funds
were the general funds, elementary bUilding fund and high school building fund.

The combined balance for all funds of $31.1 million increased by $9,478,905 in 2011, mainly is due to bond proceeds deposited Into the
building funds. The bond proceeds will be spent on projects proposed when the voters approved the issuance. The unrestricted portion
of these fund balances are generally an indicator of resources available for spending in the next fiscal year. Most of the fund balances
have been budgeted to support infrastructure projects in 2012 and $17.3 million has been reserved for use in future years. The Board
of Trustees and management have set an objective to maintain a minimum general fund reserve of 5% of budgeted general
expenditures. Currentiy the Elementary District reserves are at 4.01 % while the High Schooi District reserves are at 3.24%. In 2011 the
reduction in general fund balance is mainly due to protested taxes and the unanticipated amount of retirement severance packages.
Capital project proceeds from 2010 were spent down in 2011 for planned improvements.

Budgeted expenditures must be adopted by the Board of Trustees prior to the expenditure of governmental funds. If budgeted
expenditures are not recognized during the fiscal year, authorization for the expenditure of unused funds lapses at the end of the fiscal
year. [f projected expenditures are insufficient to meet district requirements, the Board can adopt revised or supplemental budget
expenditures after a pUblic hearing that can be held at any time during the fiscal year. At a board meeting on June 29, 2011 the board
adopted amendments to the budget. An amendment to the high school general fund budget in the amount of $550,000 for severance
pay was passed. [n the elementary retirement fund an amendment of $300,000 was passed and an amendment for $200,000 in the
high school retirement fund to account for unforeseen retirements in the district. The board also adopted amendments on this date for
the elementary debt service in the amount of $110,058 and the high school debt service for $188,742 to accommodate the QSCS and
QZAB bonds that were issued after budget adoption.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The general fund is always reported as a major fund (See Note 1). This fund reported an unreserved fund baiance of $4.0 million, a
decrease of $1.3 million over the prior year.

The table below summarizes generai fund revenues and expenditures for fiscal year 2011 and 2010. Revenue increased by 4.5% due
primarily to federal ARRA funds. Expenditures increased by 5.5% primarily due to increases in instruction and support services. The
significant variation in instructional expenditures was due to raises for staff, health insurance increases and severance pay.
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Significant General Fund Budgetary Variation

Final Budget Actual Change
Revenues

Property taxes $ 32,835,120 $ 31,890,655 $ (944,465)
Intergovernmental:
State aid 51,096,812 47,974,195 (3,122,617)
State other 14,284,928 14,316,666 31,738
Federal 3,632,866 6,755,483 3,122,617
Tuition 200,000 216,974 16,974

Interest 64,393 32,234 (32,159)
Total revenues $ 102,114,119 $ 101,186,207 $ (927,912)

Expenditures
Current:

Instruction $ 63,663,550 $ 65,136,975 $ 1,473,425
Support services:

Students 6,569,465 7,187,725 618,260
Instructional staff 5,443,764 5,807,353 363,589
General administration 3,458,580 1,311,147 (2,147,433)
School administration 7,570,379 7,535,626 (34,753)
B.usiness services 1,431,219 1,782,780 351,561
Operation ~nd maintenance 10,946,745 10,757,854 (188,891)
Student transportation 5,183 47,398 42,215

Community services 6,600 6,600
Extracurricular 2,001,441 2,114,852 113,411

Debt Service:
Principal 230,935 236,253 5,318
Interest and other charges 28,261 7,321 (20,940)

Capital outiay 757,997 520,373 (237,624)
Total expenditures $ 102,114,119 $ 102,452,257 $ 338,138

Net change in fund balances (1,335,300)

Fund balances- beginning 5,351,340

Fund balances- ending $ 4,016,040

There were some significant protests occurring within the county that is affecting the taxes collected until settlement This will be an on-
going problem with several major businesses within Billings choosing to protest their taxes. The significant variation in expenditures for
instruction was raises to staff and health insurance increases. The significant variation in the general administration expenditures was
due to funds utilized in other functions for staff raises, actual numbers are based on the actual amounts, budgetary basis.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - The distnct's 2011 capital project bUdget was used to complete the projects funded by the general fund and bond funds
authorized by the voters In December 2010. Construction in progress as of June 30, 2011 of $840,988 consists primarily of projects
funded by QZAB or QSCB bond proceeds.

The following schedule presents capital asset balances nel of depreciation for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. The
district had $61.7 million invested in a broad range of capital assets, including technology, equipment and school buildings. Additional
information on the district's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

Land
Improvements other than bUildings
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Total

$

$

2011

4,377,961 $
953,445

53,989,785
1,569,957

840,988
61,732,136 $

2010

4,377,961
306,046

54,256,525
1,898,268

998,686
61,837,486

$

$

Change

647,399
(266,740)
(328,311)
(157,698)
(105,350)

,
c

Debt Administration - A summary of the district's outstanding long-term debt for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 is presented
below:

General obligation bonds
Limited obligation bonds
Notes payable
Compensated absences
Service credit and termination pay benefits
Other postemployment benefits

Total

$

$

2011 2010

12,000,000 $
589,750 674,000
235,695 387,698

12,104,593 12,406,489
9,998,071 8,996,358
9,269,000 7,721,000

44,197,109 $ 30,185,545

$

$

Change

12,000,000
(84,250)

(152,003)
(301,896)

1,001,713
1,548,000

14,011,564

At year end the district had $44.2 million in outstanding other long-term debt/liabilities. The current portion which is due within one year
is equal to $1.4 million. The total long-term liability increased $14.0 million, or 46.4%. The change is due to an increase of OPEB,
service credit and termination pay benefits liabiiilies. Also the issuance of general obligation bonds in the amount of $12 million
contributed to the increase in long-term liability for the district.

Under current state statutes, a district's general obligation bonded debt issuances are subject to a legal limitation based on taxable
value. As of June 30,2011 the district's total debt outstanding was well below the legal limit of $338.8 million. The district has received
an AA- rating from Standard & POOl'S Ratings Services for general obligation debt.

Additional information on the district's long-term debt can be found in Note 3 of this report.
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The district serves students who live within the city of Billings and specific, adjacent areas in Yellowstone County. Billings benefits from
a diverse economy as a regional center for agriculture, retail, petroleum, medical services, transportation, education, law and
government services. Nevertheless, economic indicators for the region tend to follow national trends but without the volatility found in
other parts of the country. In the past year, housing starts have leveied off from their decline but are still less than 2010 levels.
Housing saies also continued to decline. Unempioyment in Billings has decreased over the last year and still remains at a much lower
rate than the national average. Pay freezes or small increases In wages are not uncommon within the region. The construction industry
has slowed, however there is evidence of commercial building and most recently voters approved a bond for the construction of a new
public library. Montana's tourism business continues to provide opportunities to visitors to the region and state.. There are some
government stimulus projects still under way as a result of the American Relief and Recovery Act. Medical services in Billings continue
to expand at the two hospitals and other health related facilities and clinics. Higher education opportunities in Billings continue to grow
at MSU-Billings, MSU-Billings College of Technology, and Rocky Mountain College as evidenced in steady enrollment at all three
institutions.

The 2011 Montana Legislature funded K-12 public education with an increase of 1% for FY 12 and 1.6% for FY 13. This level of
funding do not provide the necessary resources for sustaining personnel and programs at their current levels since funding levels are
less than the current infiation rate. For FY 12 the district relied heavily on reimbursements funds from Medicaid and Medicaid
Administrative Claiming (MAC) program. While an increase in enrollment will help support the FY 13 budget, the district will not be able
to rely on reimbursement funds as sustainable sources of revenue. The Montana School Boards Association anticipates that the result
of the Legislature's failure to fund the impact of infiation will result in a "lasting, compounding effect furthering the state's compliance
with its own definition of the Basic System of Free Quality Schools 20-9-309, MCA." The district has begun the budgetary process
based on the first student count day in October for FY 13 with these factors taken into consideration.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditor$ with a general overview of the district's
finances and to demonstrate the district's accountability for the resources it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, contact Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer Dr. Josh Middleton, at Billings Public Schools, 415 N.
30th Street, Billings, Montana, 59101.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,272,477
Receivables:

Taxes, net 2,900,524
Governments 1,593,055
other 827,755

Inventories 81,243
Prepaid items 95,686
Deferred charges 230,120
Capital assets:

Land and construdion in progress 5,218,949
Depreciable capital assets, net 56,513,187

Total assets 102,732,996

LIASIL1TI ES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,432,464
Unearned revenue 77,532
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year:
Bonds and notes 199,014
Compensated absences 1,210,459

Due in more than one year:
Bonds and notes 12,626,431
Compensated absences 10,894,134
Service credit and termination pay benefits payable 9,998,071
Other postemployment benetits 9,269,000

Total liabilities 48,707,105

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 59,798,909
Restricted for:

Instruction 5,653,126
Support services:

Students 6,209
Instructional staff 1,000
General administration 9,574
School administration 298,930
Operation and maintenance 600,761
Student transportation 682,813

Food s8IVices 86,785
Debt service 118,322

Unrestricted (13,230,538)

Total net assets $ 54,025,891

See notes to basic financial statements.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Changes in Net
Assets

Instruction
Support services:

Students
Instructional staff
General administration
School administration
Business services
Operation and maintenance
Student transportation

Food services
Community services
Extracurricular
Other current charges
Interest

Total

$ 94,100,760

10,978,889
7,541,224
1,559,394

10,149,144
2,258,772

12,244,035
5,220,799
5,872,264

30,563
2,458,540

12,874
316,332

152,743,590

$ 733,494

32,415
38,379

2,362,415

3,166,703

$ 24,053,251

6,210,455
1,302,795

7,618
631,825

7,184
595,659

1,531,615
3,269,635

32,129

298,800

37,940,966

$ $ (69,314,015)

(4,768,434)
(6,238,429)
(1,551,776)
(9,517,319)
(2,251,588)

(11,615,961)
(3,650,805)

(240,214)
(30,563)

77,586 (2,348,825)
(12,874)
(17,532)

77,586 (111,558,335)

See notes to basic financial statements.

General revenues:
Property taxes
Intergovernmental:

State aid
State other
County

Interest
Contributions and donations
Miscellaneous

Totai general revenues

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

38,512,088

48,029,784
5,721,040

13,525,559
293,422

1,146,735
269,744

107,498,372

(4,059,963)

58,085,854

$ 54,025,891
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Other Tolal
Elementary High School Governmental Governmental

General Building Building Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,243,317 $ 7,466,880 $ 7,787,194 $ 11,333,871 $ 31,831,262
Receivables:

Taxes, net 2,440,886 459,638 2,900,524
Governments 1,593,055 1,593,055
Other 188,496 99,922 31,500 99,545 419,463

Due from other funds 85,000 85,000

Total assets $ 7,872,699 $ 7,566,802 $ 7,903,694 $ 13,486,109 $ 36,829,304

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 1,628,874 $ 451,383 $ 251,824 $ 781,791 $ 3,113,872
Deferred revenue 2,227,785 2,612 404,098 2,634,495

Totai liabilities 3,856,659 453,995 251,824 1,185,889 5,748,367

Fund balances:
Restricted 3,767,150 7,125,068 7,066,890 17,959,108
Committed 2,085,667 2,085,667
Assigned 223,775 3,345,657 526,802 3,147,663 7,243,897
Unassigned 3,792,265 3,792,265

Total fund balances 4,016,040 7,112,807 7,651,870 12,300,220 31,080,937

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 7,872,699 $ 7,566,802 $ 7,903,694 $ 13,486,109 $ 36,829,304

See notes to basic financial·statements.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011

Total fund balance, governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Other iong-term assets are not available to pay current period expenditures and, therefore, are
deferred in the funds.

The internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and iiabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Some liabilities, including notes payable, limited obligation bonds, compensated absences, and
service credit end termination pay benefits, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not included in the funds. The details of these balances follows:

Deferred charges
Notes payable
General obligation bonds
Limited obligation bonds
Compensated absences
Service credit and termination pay benefits

Net assets of governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements.

$ 31,080,937

60,382,077

2,618,415

(5,453,605)

230,120
(235,695)

(12,000,000)
(589,750)

(12,008,537)
(9,998,071)

$ 54,025,891
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Other Total
Elementary Hi9h School Governmental Governmental

General Building Building Funds Funds
REVENUES

Property taxes $ 31,890,655 $ $ $ 5,979,302 $ 37,869,957
Intergovernmental:

County 14,285,342 14,285,342
Stale aid 47,974,195 55,589 48,029,784
State other 14,316,666 5,377,361 19,694,027
Federal 6,755,483 16,208,557 22,964,040

Tuition 216,974 216,974
Charge for services 13,981 18,434 2,936,008 2,968,423
Interest 32,234 41,250 16,671 169,240 259,395
Miscellaneous 45,369 36,500 1,335,310 1,417,179

Total revenues 101,186,207 100,600 71,605 46,346,709 147,705,121

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction 65,096,669 1,586 25,071,576 90,169,831
Support services:

Students 7,187,725 1,314 3,585,922 10,774,961
Instructional staff 5,803,981 2,119 1,564,146 7,370,246
General administration 1,311,896 60,245 29,491 69,325 1,470,957
School administration 7,535,626 2,512,555 10,048,181
Business services 1,782,780 426,098 2,208,878
Operation and maintenance 10,828,842 96,294 88,913 1,011,926 12,025,975
Student transportation 47,398 5,130,147 5,177,545

Food services 5,788,739 5,788,739
Community services 6,600 23,963 30,563
Extracurricular 2,108,957 301,392 2,410,349
Other current charges 12,874 12,874

Capital outlay 567,459 532,963 309,051 1,315,746 2,725,219
Debt service:

Principal 236,253 236,253
Interest and other charges 7,321 79,900 129,500 298,800 515,521

Total expenditures 102,521 ,507 773,107 558,269 47,113,209 150,966;092

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,335,300) (672,507) (486,664) (766,500) (3,260,971)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Long-term debt issued 4,420,000 7,580,000 12,000,000
Sale of capital assets 65,000 65,000
Insurance 182,337 98,869 281,206

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,667,337 7,678,869 12,346,206

Net change in fund balances (1,335,300) 3,994,830 7,192,205 (766,500) 9,085,235

Fund balances - beginning 5,351,340 3,117,977 459,665 13,066,720 21,995,702

Fund balances - ending $ 4,016,040 $ 7,112,807 $ 7,651,870 $ 12,300,220 $ 31,080,937

See notes to basic financial statements.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net Change In fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.

This is the amount by which depreciation ($2,862,242) exceeded capital outlay ($2,725,219) in the
current period.

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, donations and trade-ins) is to
increase net assets. .

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenue in the governmental funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, ieases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.
Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. The details olthese transactions follows:

Capitalize debt issuance costs
Amortization of deferred charges
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of principal on long-term debt

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Service credit and termination pay benefits
Compensated absences

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual
funds. The change in net assets of the internal service funds is reported with the governmental
activities.

Change In net assets of governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements.

$ 9,085,235

(137,023)

66,729

558,437

209,400
(10,211)

(12,000,000)
236,253

(1,001,713)
306,448

(1,373,518)

$ (4,059,963)
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BILLINGS PUBliC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Internal
Service Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,441,215
Accounts receivable, net 408,292
Prepaid items 95,686
Inventories 81,243

Total current assets 4,026,436

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:

Land and improvements 122,700
Buildings 1,691,183
Equipment and furniture 632,465

Less accumulated depreciation (1,096,289)

Total non-current assets 1,350,059

Total assets 5,376,495

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,318,592
Due to other funds 85,000
Unearned revenue 61,452
Compensated absences 9,605

Total current liabilities 1,474,649

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences 86,451
Other postemployment benefits 9,269,000

ti,
Total non-current liabilities 9,355,451

Total liabilities 10,830,100

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 1,350,059
Unrestricted (6,803,664)

Total net assets $ (5,453,605)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Internal
Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for servIces

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services - salaries
Personal services - benefits
Purchased professional and technical services
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
Supplies and materials
Insurance claims and expenses
Other postemployment benefits
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

OperatIng loss

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Interest revenue
Miscellaneous revenue
Miscellaneous expenses

Total non-operating revenues and expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

See notes to basic financial statements.

$16,666,751

16,666,751

174,946
37,441
53,636
92,743

1,005,630
1,151,606

13,976,004
1,548,000

40,815

18,080,821

(1,414,070)

34,027
96,968

(90,443)

40,552

(1,373,518)

(4,080,087)

$ (5,453,605)
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B[LLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS:
Cash received from health Insurance premiums
Cash received from interfund services
Medical claims paid
Cash paid to empioyees health insurance services
Cash paid to empioyees interfund services
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services health insurance services
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services interfund services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACT[VIT[ES:
Miscellaneous cash received
Cash paid-interfund payable

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANC[NG ACT[VITIES:
Purchase of capitai assets

Net cash used by capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM [NVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending

RECONCILIATION OF OPERAT[NG LOSS TO NET CASH PROViDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating [ass
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating
activities:

Depreciation
other postemp[oyment benefits
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventory
Decrease In prepaid items
Decrease in accounts payable
Increase in unearned revenue
Increase in compensated absences

Net cash provided by operating activifies

See notes to basic financial statements.

Internal
Service Funds

$15,432,515
1,372,146

(13,976,004)
(79,396)

(215,433)
(998,448)

(1,276,825)

258,555

96,968
(51,000)

45,968

(5,759)

(5,759)

34,027

34,027

332,791

3,108,424

$ 3,441,215

$ (1,504,513)

40,815
1,548,000

133,546
36,326

8,277
(12,812)

4,364
4,552

$ 258,555
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Private
Purpose Trust

Fund- Agency
Extracurricular Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent" $ 2,135,311 $ 600,429
Other receivables 453

Total assets 2,135,311 600,882

LIABILITiES
Accounts payable 44,474 600,882

Total liabilities 44,474 600,882

NET ASSETS
Held in trust $ 2,090,837 $

See notes to basic financial statements.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

See notes to basic financial statements.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the district are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
local governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and
local governments through its pronouncements (statements and interpretations). Private-sector standards of accounting and financial
reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB Board. Governments also have
the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their proprietary funds, subject to this same limitation. The district has
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The district's significant accounting policies are described below.

The district adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for all governments that report governmental funds. It establishes
criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically defined classifications and clarifies definitions for governmental fund types.

Reporting Entity

The district was established under Montana law to provide educational services below the college and university level to residents of
the district. The district consists of two legally separate entities: an elementary district and a high school district. Both are managed by
a central Board of Trustees and by a central administration appointed by and responsible to the Board.

Yellowstone County (the "County") provides substantial services to the district; tax billing, cash collections, debt payments and warrant
redemption. The County also maintains the district's cash and invests available funds at the direction of the district. The County
Commissioners have a legal obligation to set levy amounts and to approve the budget adopted by the district. However, despite the
degree of services provided, the district does not qualify as a component unit of the County.

Although the district consists of two separate statutory entities, it is managed and operated as a single primary government. These
financial statements present, as a single reporting entity, all activities of the primary government. A primary government is defined as
having a separately elected governing body, being legally separate, and fiscally independent.

Govemment-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the district. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Internal service fund activity is eliminated to avoid
"doubling up" revenues and expenses. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or identifiable activity. Program revenues
include 1) charges for service which report fees and other charges provided by a given function or identifiable activity 2) operating
grants and contributions and 3) capital grants. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns in the
fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements (fiduciary fund financial statements include agency
funds, which have no measurement focus). Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of reiated cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met. As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and avaiiable. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the district considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Property
taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized
as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or
earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the district.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the internal service fund's principal ongoing
operations. Operating revenues are charges for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The district reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the district's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The elementary and high school bUilding funds account for bond or insurance proceeds, federal funds or property sold by the
district for building or construction projects. The building fund is a non-budgeted fund.

Additionally, the district reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for the financing of services provided by one department or agency to other departments or
agencies on a cost reimbursement basis. The internal service funds account for the activities of the health insurance fund,
the insuranoe deductible fund and the purchasing/printing fund.

Agency funds are custodial in nature and are used to account for assets that the district holds for others in an agency
capacity. The agency funds account for the payroll and claims clearing funds.

The distlict has a private-purpose trust fund, the student extracurricular fund, which accounts for the extracurricular student
activities.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Eguity

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments, except amounts in the extracurricular funds, the flexible benefrts fund and petty cash accounts, are held by the
County Treasurer. The County Treasurer invests the district's cash at the direction of the government as required by state statute.
Allowable investments include direct obligations of the United States Government, repurchase agreements, savings or time deposits in
a state or national bank, building and loan associations, savings and loan associations, or credit unions insured by the FDIC, FSUC, or
NCUA and the State Short Term Investment Pool (STIP). STIP is classified as a 2a7-like pool, and as such, uses amortized cost to
report unit values.

Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is determined annually, based on fiscal year-end market values. Short-tenn
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash on hand, demand, savings and time deposits, STIP and short­
term investments with oliginal maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition are considered cash equivalents.

Receivables

All property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibies. The property tax receivable allowance is equal to 6
percent of the outstanding balance at June 30, 2011. The allowance at June 30, 2011, was $185,144.

Most property taxes are levied in September of each fiscal year, based on assessments as of the prior January 1. Real property taxes
are billed as of November 1 and are payable in two payments, November 30 and May 31. Unpaid taxes are considered delinquent on
December 1 and June 1, at which time the applicabie property is subject to lien, and penalties and interest are assessed. Most
personal property taxes are due and payable on January 1 and become delinquent Febnuary 1. Property taxes are maintained and
collected by the County Treasurer.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

The district uses the consumption method to vaiue inventories and prepaids. All inventories are valued at cost. Inventories are
recorded as expenditures in the fund financial statements. Inventories are recorded as expenses in the government-wide and internal
service fund financial statements when used. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements other than buildings and machinery and
equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the district as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated usefultife in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated histoncal cost if purchased or constructed. Contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date
of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are
not capitalized. Depreciation on capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Collections Not Capitalized

Assets
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Years
20

10-60
5-20

Certain collections of historic artifacts and works of art are not reported in the accompanying financial statements. These assets have
not been capitalized because they meet all of the conditions that quaiify them as collections that are not required to be capitalized.
These conditions are that the collections are held for public exhibition or education in the furtherance of pubiic service; not held for
financial gain; the collections are protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved; and, any sale proceeds are expected to be
used to acquire other items for the collections.

Compensated Absences

Liabilities associated with accumuiated vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmentai funds only if they have matured, for exampie, as a
result of employee resignations or retirements.

Classified employees (non-teaching) earn vacation leave ranging from 15 to 24 days per year depending on the individual's years of
service. Accumulated vacation is restricted under state statute to a maximum accumulation of two times the amount earned annually.
Vacation leave is absorbed by time off from work, or, with certain limitations, may be payable to the employee upon termination.

Sick leave is accumulated for classified and certified employees at the rate of 12 days per year with no limit on the carry over amount.
Upon retirement or resignation, classified and certified employees are eligible for sick leave compensation at one fourth of the
accumulated amount.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-tem obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or proprietary fund
statement of net assets. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Eguity

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consists of capital assets including restncted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets - consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Unrestricted net assets - all other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related
debt."

In the fund statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The following classifications describe the relative
strength of the spending constraints:

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because they are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact.
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Restricted - amounts that can be spent oniy for specific purposes because of constitutlonai provisions or enabiing legislation or
because of constraints that are externaily imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other
governments.

Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by the district itself, using its highest level of decision-making
authority (i.e., governing body). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the district
takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

Assigned fund balance - amounts the distri.ct intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be expressed by the governing body
or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts ere reported only in the general fund.

Beginning fund balances for the district funds have been restated to refiect the above classificafions.

The district establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of a resolution. This is typicaily done through
adoption or amendment of the budget. Assigned fund balance in the general fund represents amounts available to fund the subsequent
year's budget and to cover payroil and operating expenditures due to the timing of tax receipts.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the district considers
restricted funds to have been spent first. When an 'expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances
are available, the district considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finaily
unassigned funds, as needed, unless the governing body has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Misceilaneous Revenue

Misceilaneous revenue includes other revenue from local sources which is not classified eisewhere.

Estimates

The preparation of financiai· statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make esfimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Deficit Fund Eguitv

The health insurance fund, an internal service fund, had a deficit net assets balance of $6,743,262 as of June 30, 2011. The deficit
exists in the heaith insurance fund because of the unfunded liability for other postemployment benefits.. The district is in the process of
reviewing the funding of the health insurance fund in order to eliminate the deficit.

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

Eguitv in Pooled Cash and Investments

As discussed in Note 1, the district participates in the County's investment pool. The pooled cash is invested by the County Treasurer
in accordance with State statute. Interest earnings are distributed to the district based on average daily balances. The County
Treasurer withdraws funds as needed to pay warrants. Investment risk related to the district's share of the pool is not determinable.
Information reiated to the pool can be obtained from the County. Demand and savings accounts held outside of the County pool were
covered by FDIC insurance. The uninsured portion was covered by coilateral held by financial institutions or by their departments or
agents, but not in the district's name. The amount of coilateral held for the district's deposits as of June 30, 2011, exceeded the amount
required by State statute. The County has not provided nor obtained any legally binding guarantees during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011 to support the value of shares in the pool. The district does not currently have a policy on custodial credit risk. Along with
limitations placed on investments by state law, the County minimizes custodiai risk by restrictions set forth by County poiicy. The
County maintains a listing of financial institutions which are approved for Investment purposes.

The County's investment policy addresses the soundness of financial institutions in which the County will deposit funds, types of
investment instruments as permitted by State statute, and the percentage of the portfolio which may be invested in certain instnuments
with longer terms to maturity. The objectives of the policy, in order of priority, are safety, liquidity, and yield. The County has
established an oversight committee, comprised of various County officials and representatives of other local governments with large
cash baiances, to monitor and review the management of public funds maintained in the investment pool in accordance with Title 7,
Chapter 6, Part 2 of the Montana Code Annotated and as qualified by Attorney General Opinion Vol. 42, No. 25. The Treasurer
prepares and submits a comprehensive investment report to the members of the oversight committee and the investment pool
participants every month. The report covers the type of investments in the pooi, maturity dates, par value, actual cost, and fair value.
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Disaggregation of Payable Balances

Payables as of June 30, 2011, were as follows:

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 4,377,961 $ $ $ 4,377,961
Construction in 'progress 998,686 840,988 (998,686) 840,988

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 5,376,647 840,988 (998,686) 5,218,949

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildingsflmprovements 88,061,503 2,009,599 90,071,102
Improvements other than buildings 420,374 698,069 1,118,443
Machinery and equipment 8,584,702 258,594 (15,150) 8,828,146

Total capital assets, being depreciated 97,066,579 2,966,262 (15,150) 100,017,691

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings/improvements (33,804,978) (2,276,339) (36,081,317)
Improvements other than buildings (114,328) (50,670) (164,998)
Machinery and equipment (6,686,434) (576,048) 4,293 (7,258,189)

Total accumulated depreciation (40,605,740) (2,903,057) 4,293 (43,504,504)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 56,460,839 63,205 (10,857) 56,513,187

Total capital assets, net $ 61,837,486 $ 904,193 $ (1,009,543) $ 61,732,136

Depreciation expense was charged to district activities as follows:

Instruction
Support services-students
Support services-instructional staff
Support services-general administration
Support services-administration
Support services-business
Operation and maintenance
Student transportation
Food services
Extracurricular
Intemal service fund

$ 2,086,197
170,301
102,401

15,016
33,078
92,865

145,367
22,105
83,525

111,387
40,815

$ 2,903,057

-38-



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Due To/From Funds

The balance of $85,000 due to the High School Building Fund from Warehouse Fund resulted from a loan made to cover the operating
cash deficits facing the Warehouse June 30, 2011,

Operating Leases

The district leases equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Total rental expenses for operating leases were $8,495 for the
year ended June 30, 2011. Scheduled minimum rental payments for the years ending June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 are $5,210,
$5,210 and $2,475, respectively.

Long-Term Debt

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the following changes occurred in long-term debt:

Baiance Balance
July 1,2010 Additions Retirements June 30, 2011

'Generai obligation bonds $ $ 12,000,000 $ $ 12,000,000
Limited obligation bonds 674,000 (84,250) 589,750
Notes payable 387,698 (152,003) 235,695
Compensated absences 12,406,489 7,207,385 (7,509,281) 12,104,593
Service credit and termination

pay benefits 8,996,358 3,418,619 (2,416,906) 9,998,071
Other post employment benefits 7,721,000 3,245,000 (1,697,000) 9,269,000

$ 30,185,545 $ 25,871,004 $ (11,859,440) $ 44,197,109

Due Within
One Year

$
84,250

114,764
1,210,459

$ 1,409,473

A substantiai portion of compensated absences are paid from the general fund.

General Obligation Bonds

On December 29,2010, the district issued general obligation schooi building bonds in the amount of $12,000,000. General obligation
bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the district. .The bonds were designated as Qualified School
Construction Bonds (QSCB) and Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZAB). As such, the district is entitled to receive payments from the
United States Treasury Department equal to 100% of the interest payments. The proceeds from these general obligation bonds will be
used for the purpose of rehabilitating or improving various school facilities within the district. The bonds bear interest at 5.4% per
annum and will be paid back through sixteen annual sinking fund deposits. The sinking fund deposits, along with earnings on those
deposits, will be used to retire the bonds on June 15,2027. The district will reduce the annual bond payment by the amount of interest
earnings from the sinking fund. The elementary and high school debt service funds will be servicing 100% of the general obligation
debt payments.

Limited Obligation Bonds

On December 29, 2008, the district issued limited obligation school building bonds in the amount of $773,250. The proceeds from these
limited obligation bonds was used to Improve, repair, or rehabilitate existing facilities at Beartooth Elementary School, Riverside Middle
School and Ponderosa Elementary School. The bonds bear interest at 0% per annum and will be paid back through ten annual sinking
fund deposits. The sinking fund deposits, along with earnings on those deposits, will be used to retire the bonds on June 15, 2018.
The district will reduce the annual bond payment by the amount of interest earnings from the sinking fund. The elementary general
fund services 100% ofthe limited obligation debt payments.

Notes Payable-State Board of Investments

During June 2008, the district borrowed an additional $408,564 on a refinanced note from the State Board of Investments. Proceeds
from the borrowing were used to purchase 20 new vehicies. interest and principal payments are due semi-annually. The interest rate
on the notes was 1.95% at June 30, 2011. The interest rate is adjusted February of each year and cannot exceed 15% per annum.
The elementary and high school general funds service 100% of the notes payable debt.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the limited obligation bonds and notes payable are as follows:

Year ending General Obligation Bonds Limited Obligation Bonds Notes Payable
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2012 $ $ 648,000 $ 84,250 $ 114,764 3,852
2013 648,000 84,250 80,954 1,971
2014 648,000 84,250 39,977 387
2015 648,000 84,250
2016 648,000 84,250

2017-2021 3,240,000 168,500
2022-2026 3,240,000

2027 12,000,000 648,000

$ 12,000,000 $ 10,368,000 $ 589,750 $ $ 235,695 $ 6,210

Fund Balances

As of June 30, 2011, fund balances are comprised of the following:

Elementary High School Nonmajor Total
General BUilding Building Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Restricted:
Instruction $ $ $ $ 5,477,033 $ 5,477,033
Support services:

Students 6,209 6,209
Instructional staff 1,000 1,000
General administration 9,574 9,574
School administration 298,930 298,930
Operation and maintenance 598,149 598,149
Student transportation 477,534 477,534

Food services 86,785 86,785
Capital projects 3,767,150 7,125,068 10,892,218
Debt service 111,676 111,676

Committed:
Instruction 542,966 542,966
Support services:

Students 1,457,691 1,457,691
Commumity services 85,010 85,010

Assigned:
Instruction 145,005 1,951,959 2,096,964
Support services:

Students 53 470,583 470,636
Instructional staff 12,599 324,463 337,062
General administration 186,633 186,633
School administration 420 420
Business services 96,903 96,903
Operation and maintenance 60,223 3,345,657 526,802 100,637 4,033,319
Student transportation 16,065 16,065

Extracurricular 5,895 5,895
Unassigned 3,792,265 3,792,265

$ 4,016,040 $ 7,112,807 $ 7,651,870 $ 12,300,220 $ 31,080,937
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NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION

Risk Management

The district is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; professional liability (i.e.,
errors and omissions); workers compensation (i.e., employee injuries); medical Insurance costs; and environmental damages. A variety
of methods is used to provide insurance for these risks. Commercial policies, transferring all risks of loss, except for relatively small
deductible amounts, are purchased for theft, damage or destruction of assets, professional liabilities and employee medical costs. The
district participates in the Montana Schools Group's Workers' Compensation Risk Retention Program, a state-wide public risk pool
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for the member school distriels. The district pays quarterly
premiums for its employee injury insurance coverage. The agreement for formation of the pool provides that it will be self-sustaining
through member premiums. There are no deductibles or maximum coverage limits in the plan. Given lack of coverage available, the
district has no coverage for potential losses from environmental damages. Coverage limits and the deductibles on the commercial
policies have remained relatively constant for the last several years. Sellied claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Self-Insurance

During the year ended June 30, 2011, employees of the district were covered by a medical self-insurance plan (the "plan"). The district
contributed approximately $561 per month per employee to the plan and employees, at their option, authorized payroll withholdings to
pay contributions for dependents. Claims were paid by a third party administrator acting on behalf of the district.

The administrative contract between the district and the third party administrator is renewable annually and administrative fees and
stop-loss premiums are included in the contractual provisions. The district was protected against unanticipated catastrophic individual
and aggregate loss by stop-loss coverage through Union Labor Life. Stop-loss coverage was in effect for individual claims exceeding
$160,000.

The costs associated with the medical self-insurance plan are reported as interfund transactions. Accordingly, they are treated as
operating revenues in the internal service fund and as operating expenditures in the governmental funds. The liability as of June 30,
2011, is based on the requirements of GASB Statement 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to
the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of the ioss can be reasonably estimated. The liability includes an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported. Because actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal doctrines and
damage awards, the process used in computing claims liability does not result in an exael amount.

Liability
July 1,

Changes in the claims liability amount during fiscal year 2011 and 2010 were:

CurentYear
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

Claims
Payments

Liability
June 30,

2009-10
2010-11

Interlocal Cooperative Agreement

$ 2,238,864
1,300,000

$ 13,006,776
13,976,004

$ (13,945,640)
(13,976,004)

$ 1,300,000
1,300,000

In September 1983, the district, the City of Billings and the County entered into an agreement to coordinate their purchasing activities to
promote efficiency in purchasing and recognized substantial savings of pUblic funds by utilizing volume buying. In April 1987, a
supplement to the agreement was signed to include other pUblic agencies located in the area. The financial activities are recorded
within the districl's financial statements in the purchasing fund, an internal service fund.

Subsequent Events

The district has evaluated subsequent events through December 15, 2011, the date which the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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Commitments and Contingencies

At year-end, the district had commitments outstanding, in the form of purchase orders, of approximately $245,412, primarily for
construction projects, equipment and supplies. The following schedule displays encumbrances by major funds and nonmajor funds in
the aggregate.

General
Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

21 ,637 =$k~2~45~,~41~2=

Assigned;
Instruction $ 145,005 $
Support services;

Students 53
Instructional staff 12,599
School administration
Operation and maintenance 60,223
Student transportation

Extracurricular 5,895

$ 223,775 $

5,152 $

420

16,065

150,157

53
12,599

420
60,223
16,065
5,895

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal
government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The
amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the district expects
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The district is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of
the district's counsel the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the district.

Retirement Plans

Teachers' Retirement System and Public Employee Retirement System Plans

The district participates in two statewide mandatory cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit retirement plans which cover all
employees, except ceriain substitute teachers and part-time, non-teaching employees. The Teachers' Retirement System (fRS)
covers teaching employees, including principals and superintendents. The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS-DBRP)
covers non-teaching employees. The plans are established under State law and are administered by the State of Montana. The plans
provide retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.

Beginning in fiscal year 2002, eligible members of PERS had a 12-month window to choose between the PERS-defined benefit
retirement plan (DBRP) or the PERS-defined contribution retirement plan (DCRP). Eligible new hires will have a 12-month window
during which they may choose to remain in the current PERS-DBRP or join the PERS-DCRP. Members may not be active in both the
defined contribution and defined benefit retirement plans. The choice is irrevocable. For members that choose to join the PERS-DCRP,
a percentage of the employer contribution will be used to maintain the funding of the defined benefit plan.

The plans issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
reports may be obtained from the Public Employees' Retirement Board, 100 Norih Park, P.O. Box 200131, Helena, Montana 59620­
0131, (406) 444-3154.

Contribution rates for the plans are required and determined by State law. The contribution rates, expressed as a percentage of
covered payroll, were as follows;

TRS
PERS

Employer
7.47%
6.80%

Employee
7.15%
6.90%

Total
14.62%
13.70%

The State of Montana contributes .370% and 2.49% per year to the PERS and TRS plans, respectively, on behalf of the employer.
Contributions made by the State of Montana were $46,717 to PERS and $1,881,358 to TRS. These amounts have been recorded in
the financial statements.
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The amounts contributed to the plans during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, were equal to the required contributions
for each year. The signification variation for FY2011 was due to a large amount of retirements that occurred in Spring 2011 The
amounts contributed by both the district and its employees (including additional voluntary contributions by employees as permitted by
State law) were as follows:

2011 2010 2009

TRS-regular $ 11,153,328 $ 10,779,984 $ 10,273,177
TRS-termination 3,937,949 1,848,904 815,528

Total TRS $ 15,091,277 $ 12,628,888 $ 11,088,705

PERS $ 1,729,736 $ 1,682,557 $ 1,602,331

Service Credit and Termination Pay Benefit Plan

The Billings Public Schools Service Credit and Terminalion Pay Benefit Plan (the "Plan") is a sin9Ie-employer, defined-benefit plan
covering employees that belong to the following unions or groups; Billings Education Association (BEA), Billings Classified Employees
Association (BCEA), Montana Public Employees Association (MPEA), Administrators and Administrative Support. The Plan was
established by the Board of Trustees through union agreements and agreements with other employee groups. The Plan does not
issue a separate report. Billings Public Schools does not prefund the Pian but finances it on a pay-as-you-go basis.

FollOWing is a summary of Plan benefit provisions:

Service Credit

Eligibility

Benefit

Rate of Pay

Form of Benefit

Death Benefit

10 years of service with Billings Public Schools

A single amount is payable upon termination or retirement. The amount is
dependent on the employee group; the number of years of service credit and
the rate of pay.

BEA and Administrators; $100 per year of service prior to June 30, 1986 plus
21/2 days of pay for each full year of service after July 1,1986. No service
credit is paid to any teacher or administrator with more than 35 years of
service.

BCEA, MPEA and Administrative Support: 2 1/2 days of pay for each full
year of service.

BEA and Administrators: Highest daily rate. BCEA, MPEA and
Administrative Support Most recent daily rate.

Lump sum upon termination

Full value of the service credit benefit as if the date of death had been the
employee's date of tenmination.
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TRS Option 1 Benefit

Eligibility

Benefit

Employee Cost

Employer Cost

Employees who are eligible for retirement with TRS at 25 years of service or age 60
and 5 years of service for Normal Retirement, or age 50 and 5 years of service for
Early Retirement.

TRS Employees may increase their monthly retirement benefit by including their
Termination Pay (service credit, sick leave, and vacation leave) in the calculation of
their Average Final Compensation. This option is also available to beneficiaries of
eligible TRS employees who had not yet retired.

As of October 1, 2011, administrators' vacation pay will be frozen for the purpose of
payment within the district's severance package. As of July 1, 2011, no newly
employed administrator will be entitled to include vacation pay in the severance
payment.

Termination Pay x Employee Rate x Total years of Creditable Service

Termination Pay x Employer Rate x Total years of Creditable Service

Billings Public School's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Plan for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 3,313,662
Interest on net pension obligation 404,836
Adjustment to annual required contribution (299,879)

Annual pension cost 3,418,619
Contributions made (2,416,906)

Change in net pension obligation 1,001,713
Net pension obligation-beginning of year 8,996,358

Net pension obligation-end of year $ 9,998,071

The annual required contribution (ARC) for the current year was determined as part of the June 30, 2010 actuarial valuation using the
entry age actuarial cost method. This report was updated for 2011 with new population information; however a full report will be
generated again in 2012. Under this method, the actuariai present value of the projected benefits of each Individual included In the
valuation is allocated as a level percentage of the individual's projecled compensation between entry age and assumed exit. The
portion of this actuarial present value allocated to a valuation year is called the normal cost. The normal cost was first calculated for
each individual employee. The normal cost rate is defined to equal the total of the individual normal costs, divided by the total pay rate.

The portion of this actuarial present vaiue not prOVided for at a valuation date by the Actuarial Present Value of future Normal Costs is
called the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL). The excess of the AAL over the actuarial value of the assets, if any, is called the Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). The UAAL is amortized as a level percentage of the projected salaries of present and future
employees covered by the Plan. The amortization of the UAAL assumes that contributions are made as a level percentage of pay for a
period of years. In accordance with GASB Statement 27 guidelines, the maximum amortization period for the UAAL is 40 years for the
first ten years following the effective date of the Statement, June 15, 1997. For the Billings Public Schools the ten year period ended
June 30, 2006. Effective fiscal year 2007, the maximum amortization period for GASB Statement 27 purposes is 30 years on an open
basis. The benefits from both the service credit benefit plan and the TRS Option 1 benefit plan are computed separately, but reported
as one cost rate for purposes of determining the ARC.

The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5% annual rate increase in general wage levels, an annual discount rate of 4.5% per year and
that 90% of TRS employees will elect TRS Option 1.
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Three year trend information is as follows:

Annual Contribution as
Year Ending Pension Cost a Percentage of

June 30, (APC) APC

2009 3,265,011 26%
2010 3,571,832 49%
2011 3,418,619 71%

Net Pension
Obligation

(NPO)

7,190,259
8,996,358
9,998,071

Following is the Schedule of Funding Progress:

Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial value of assets
Actuarial value of liabilities
Unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL)
Funded ralio
Covered payroll
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

June 30, 2011
$
$ 36,843,296
$ 36,843,296

0% ;;;;

$ 82,307,548
45%

Funded Status and Funding Progress, As of June 30, 2011, the Plan was 0% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$36,843,296, and the actuarlai value of assets is $0 resultln9 in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $36,843,296,

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and other trends, Amounts
determined re9ardin9 the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are SUbject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future, The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits,

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Plan Descriptions, The Billings Public Schools postemployment benefit plan is a single employer defined benefit plan that is self funded
for pre Medicare medical I prescription drug benefits and insures for Medicare supplement benefits and retiree life insurance.

Funding Policy. The reqUired contribution is based on pay-as-you-go financing requirements.

Annual OPES Cost and Net OPES Obligatton. The Billings Public Schools' annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to ,
exceed 30 years, The follOWing table shows the components of the Billings Public Schools' annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and the changes on the Billin9s Public Schools' net OPEB obligation to the postemployment benefit
plan:

Annual required contribution $ 3,193,000
Interest on net OPES obligation 347,000
Adjustment to annual required contribution (295,000)

Annual OPES cost (expense) 3,245,000
Contributions made (1,697,000)
Increase in net OPES obligation 1,548,000

Net OPES obligation - beginning of year 7,721,000

Net OPES obligation - end of year $ 9,269,000
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The Billings Public Schools' annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for fiscal year 2011 and the two preceding years are as follows:

Annual Percentage of Net OPEB
Year Ending OPEB Cost Annual AOC Obligation

June 30, (AOC) Contributed (NaG)

2009 3,796,000 37% 5,428,000
2010 4,272,000 46% 7,721,000
2011 3,245,000 52% 9,269,000

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 3D, 2011, the Plan was 0% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$34,530,000, and the actuarial value of assets is $0 resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $34,530,OOO.The
covered payroll (annual payroll ot active employees covered by the plan) was $80,627,450 and the ration of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 43% percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual reqUired contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of
funding progress, presented as required supplementary infomnation following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear
trend infomnation about whether the actuartal value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and included the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.

In the July 1, 2010 actuarial valuation (the most recent valuation), the projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 4.5% investment rate of return which is based on the expected long term investment return of the employers own
investments used to pay plan benefits and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 11 % reduced by decrements of .5% to an ultimate
rate of 5%. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The amortization of UAAL is
done over a period of 30 years. The plan does not issue a separate report.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30,2011

REVENUES
Property taxes
Intergovernmental:

State aid
State other
Federal

Tuition
Interest

Total revenues

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

$ 32,835,120 $ 32,835,120 $ 31,890,655 $ $ 31,890,655

51,096,812 47,974,195 47,974,195 47,974,195
14,284,928 14,284,928 14,316,666 14,316,666
3,632,866 6,755,483 6,755,483 6,755,483

200,000 200,000 216,974 216,974
64,393 64,393 32,234 32,234

102,114,119 102,114,119 101,186,207 101,186,207

EXPENDITURES
Current

Instructional
Support services:

Students
instructional staff
General administration
Administration
Business

Operation and maintenance
Student transportation
Community services
Extracurricular

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and other charges

Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

63,663,550 64,055,797 65,136,975

6,569,465 6,904,607 7,187,725
5,443,764 5,462,613 5,807,353
3,458,580 2,836,223 1,311,147
7,570,379 7,655,674 7,535,626
1,431,219 1,537,849 1,782,780

10,946,745 10,809,593 10,757,854
5,183 21,849 47,398
6,600 6,600 6,600

2,001,441 2,100,515 2,114,852

230,935 238,995 236,253
28,261 21,354 7,321

757,997 1,012,450 520,373

102,114,119 102,664,119 102,452,257

$ $ (550,000) (1,266,050)

5,058,315

$ 3,792,265

(40,306)

(3,372)
749

70,988

(5,895)

47,086

69,250

(69,250)

293,025

$ 223,775

65,096,669

7,187,725
5,803,981
1,311,896
7,535,626
1,782,780

10,828,842
47,398

6,600
2,108,957

236,253
7,321

567,459

102,521,507

(1,335,300)

5,351,340

$ 4,016,040

NOTES TO THE BUDGET AND ACTUAL SCHEDULES

State law requires budgets be prepared for certain funds - generaily those supported by property tax revenues. Budgets are
prepared on the modified accrual basis. State law requires only that a fund's total expenditures not exceed total budgeted
expenditures. Budgets may be amended as defined by State law. The high schooi budget was amended and increased
$550,000. The amendment was funded with unassigned fund balance.

The general fund budget is based on the State of Montana's foundation program which is based primarily on enroilment.
Budgets of other funds are based on expected revenues and expenditures. The Board of Trustees approves the original
bUdget by the second Monday in August.

State law permits the inclusion of obligations (encumbrances) for construction in progress and the purchase of personal
property as expenditures for bUdget purposes. The bUdget to GAAP differences consist of encumbrances for the current
and prioryear.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS·SERVICE CREDIT AND TERMINATION PAY BENEFIT PLAN

Actuarial UALL as a
Accrued Percentage of

Actuarial Actuarial Value Liability (AAL) • Unfunded AAL Funded Ratio Covered Covered
Vaiuation Date of Assets (a) Entry Age (b) (UALL) (b-a) (alb) Payroll (c) Payroll [(b-a)/c]

6/3012011 $ $ 36,843,296 $ 36,843,296 $ $ 82,307,548 43%

6/30/2010 na na na na na na

6/30/2009 33,870,596 33,870,596 77,474,064 44%

6/30/2008 na na na na na na

6/30/2007 31,543,138 31,543,138 72,919,464 45%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS·SERVICE CREDIT AND TERMINATION PAY BENEFIT PLAN

Year Ended
June 30,

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

Annual
Required

Contribution

$ 3,313,662

3,487,945

3,209,209

3,054,269

2,829,275

Percentage
Contributed

73%

51%

27%

81%

92%

na = not availabie (an actuarial update is only required every two years)
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General Fund

The General fund is the general operationing fund of the district. All general tax revenue and other receipts that
are not allocated by law to another fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures,
instructional expenditures and capital outlay are paid from the General fund. Because Billings Public Schools is
comprised of two legal entities (Elementary and High School), the General fund (in addition to almost every other
budgeted fund) has an elementary and high school portion. As one of three major funds, combining general
subfund schedules have been presented to show the reader activity in the separate entities that comprise the
General fund, in total.



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL GENERAL SUBFUNDS
June 30, 2011

Elementary High School
General Subfund General Subfund Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,396,210 $ 1,847,107 $ 5,243,317
Receivables:

Taxesj net 1,486,113 954,773 2,440,886
Other 169,693 18,803 188,496

Total assets $ 5,052,016 $ 2,820,683 $ 7,872,699

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 938,330 $ 690,544 $ 1,628,874
Deferred revenue 1,435,417 792,368 2,227,785

Total liabilities 2,373,747 1,482,912 3,856,659

Fund balances:
Assi9ned 65,338 158,437 223,775
Unassi9ned 2,612,931 1,179,334 3,792,265

Total fund balances 2,678,269 1,337,771 4,016,040

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 5,052,016 $ 2,820,683 $ 7,872,699
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ALL GENERAL SUBFUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Elementary High School
General Subfund General Subfund Total

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 19,350,877 $ 12,539,778 $ 31,890,655
Intergovernmental:

State aid 30,754,087 17,220,108 47,974,195
State other 9,674,545 4,642,121 14,316,666
Federal 4,225,182 2,530,301 6,755,483

Tuition 182,052 34,922 216,974
Interest 23,318 8,916 32,234

Total revenues 64,210,061 36,976,146 101,186,207

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction 42,134,232 22,962,437 65,096,669
Support services:

Students 4,955,498 2,232,227 7,187,725
Instructional staff 3,591,599 2,212,382 5,803,981
General administration 840,870 471,026 1,311,896
School administration 4,530,085 3,005,541 7,535,626
Business services 1,224,966 557,814 1,782,780
Operation and maintenance 6,582,185 4,246,657 10,828,842
Student transportation 45,172 2,226 47,398

Community services 4,400 2,200 6,600
Extracurricular 506,948 1,602,009 2,108,957

Capital outlay 251,482 315,977 567,459
Debt service:

Principal 186,092 50,161 236,253
Interest and other charges 5,070 2,251 7,321

Total expenditures 64,858,599 37,662,908 102,521,507

Net change in fund balances (648,538) (686,762) (1,335,300)

Fund balances - be9innin9 3,326,807 2,024,533 5,351,340

Fund baiances - ending $ 2,678,269 $ 1,337,771 $ 4,016,040
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GMPBasis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 20,023,274 $ 20,023,274 $ 19,350,877 $ $ 19,350,877
Intergovernmental:

State aid 32,749,721 30,754,087 30,754,087 30,754,087
State other 9,664,093 9,664,093 9,674,545 9,674,545
Federal 2,229,548 4,225,182 4,225,182 4,225,182

Tuition 150,000 150,000 182,052 182,052
Interest 41,825 41,825 23,318 23,318

Total revenues 64,858,461 64,858,461 64,210,061 64,210,061

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional 40,803,871 40,950,597 42,099,921 34,311 42,134,232
Support services:

Students 4,683,930 4,826,962 4,955,498 4,955,498
Instructional staff 3,075,596 3,145,680 3,588,801 2,798 3,591,599
General administration 2,659,027 2,220,295 840,368 502 840,870
Administration 4,616,549 4,667,737 4,530,085 4,530,085
Business 929,160 1,001,180 1,224,966 1,224,966

Operation and maintenance 6,727,064 6,556,110 6,532,539 49,646 6,582,185
Student transportation 5,183 21,849 45,172 45,172
Community services 4,400 4,400 4,400 4,400
Extracurricular 521,511 521,612 506,948 506,948

Debt Service:
Principal 185,580 188,695 186,092 186,092
Interest and other charges 20,000 18,657 5,070 5,070

Capital Outlay 626,590 734,687 252,492 (1,010) 251,482

Total expenditures 64,858,461 64,858,461 64,772,352 86,247 64,858,599

Net change in fund balances $ $ (562,291) (86,247) (648,538) .t

Fund balances - beginning 3,175,222 151,585 3,326,807

Fund balances - ending $ 2,612,931 $ 65,338 $ 2,678,269
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HIGH SCHOOL GENERAL SUBFUND
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Actual
Amounts, Budgelto Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 12,811,846 $ 12,811,846 $ 12,539,778 $ $ 12,539,778
Intergovernmental:

State aid 18,347,091 17,220,108 17,220,108 17,220,108
State other 4,620,835 4,620,835 4,642,121 4,642,121
Federal 1,403,318 2,530,301 2,530,301 2,530,301

Tuition 50,000 50,000 34,922 34,922
Interest 22,568 22,568 8,916 8,916

Total revenues 37,255,658 37,255,658 36,976,146 36,976,146

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional 22,859,679 23,105,200 23,037,054 (74,617) 22,962,437
Support services:

Students 1,885,535 2,077,645 2,232,227 2,232,227
Instructional staff 2,368,168 2,316,933 2,218,552 (6,170) 2,212,382
General administration 799,553 615,928 470,779 247 471,026
Administration 2,953,830 2,987,937 3,005,541 3,005,541
Business 502,059 536,669 557,814 557,814

Operation and maintenance 4,219,681 4,253,483 4,225,315 21,342 4,246,657
Student transportation 2,226 2,226
Community services 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200
Extracurricular 1,479,930 1,578,903 1,607,904 (5,895) 1,602,009

Debt Service:
Principal 45,355 50,300 50,161 50,161
Interest and other charges 8,261 2,697 2,251 2,251

Capital Outlay 131,407 277,763 267,881 48,096 315,977

Total expenditures 37,255,658 37,805,658 37,679,905 (16,997) 37,662,908

Net change in fund balances $ $ (550,000) (703,759) 16,997 (686,762)

Fund balances - beginning 1,883,093 141,440 2,024,533

Fund balances - ending $ 1,179,334 $ 158,437 $ 1,337,771
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE
June 30, 2011

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Special Revenue Debt Service· Capital Projects Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,611,444 $ 124,334 $ 598,093 $ 11,333,871
Receivables:

Taxes, net . 452,992 6,646 459,638
Governments 1,593,055 1,593,055
Other 99,545 99,545

Total assets $ 12,757,036 $ 130,980 $ 598,093 $13,486,109

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 768,779 $ 12,658 $ 354 $ 781,791
Deferred revenue 397,452 6,646 404,098

Total liabilities 1,166,231 19,304 354 1,185,889

Fund balances:
Restricted 6,357,475 111,676 597,739 7,066,890
Committed 2,085,667 2,085,667
Assigned 3,147,663 3,147,663

Total fund balances 11,590,805 111,676 597,739 12,300,220

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 12,757,036 $ 130,980 $ 598,093 $13,486,109
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Funds

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 5,967,157 $ 11,962 $ 183 $ 5,979,302
Intergovernmental:

County 14,285,342 14,285,342
State aid 55,589 55,589
State other 5,377,361 5,377,361
Federai 15,909,757 298,800 16,208,557

Charges for services 2,936,008 2,936,008
Inlerest 160,854 1,094 7,292 169,240
Miscellaneous 1,335,310 1,335,310

Tolal revenues 46,027,378 311,856 7,475 46,346,709

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction 25,071,576 25,071,576
Support services:

Students 3,585,922 3,585,922
Instructional staff 1,564,146 1,564,146
General administration 69,325 69,325
School adminlstralion 2,512,555 2,512,555
Business services 426,098 426,098
Operation and maintenance 1,011,387 539 1,011,926
Sludent transportation 5,130,147 5,130,147

Food services 5,788,739 5,788,739
Community services 23,963 23,963
Extracurricular 301,392 301,392
other current charges 12,874 12,874

Capital outlay 1,198,817 116,929 1,315,746
Debl service

Interest and other charges 298,800 298,800

Tolal expenditures 46,696,941 298,800 117,468 47,113,209 "

Net change In fund baiances (669,563) 13,056 (109,993) (766,500)

Fund balances - beginning 12,260,368 98,620 707,732 13,066,720

Fund balances - ending $ 11,590,805 $ 111,676 $ 597,739 $12,300,220
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Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Budgeted:

Transportation Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for revenue and expenditures for the
District's pupil transportation programs.

Tuition Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for tuition payments for pupils who are residents of
the district but attend school outside the district.

Retirement Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for the employer's contribution to the Teachers'
Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, Unemployment Compensation, and the
employer's share of Social Security.

Adult Education Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for revenue .and expenditures involved with
the adult education program.

Technology Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for the purchase and maintenance of a portion
of the District's technoiogical assets.

Flexibility Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for revenues and expenditures for authorized
purposes established by the Montana Legislature. .

Non-Budgeted:

School Food Fund - (High School) To account for the Districfs food service program.

Miscellaneous Programs Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for Federal, State and Local grants
and indirect cost monies received by the district.

Traffic Education Fund - (High School) To account for expenditures related to Drivers Education and the
related tuition charged.

Lease Rental Fund - (High School) To account for the revenues and expenditures related to the lease or rental
of school property.

Compensated Absences Fund - (Elementary and High School) The District established this fund to pay any
accumulated amount of sick and vacation leave to non-teaching and administrative personnel upon
termination of employment

Miscellaneous Trust Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for the revenues and expenditures
related to miscellaneous activities.



Billings Public Schools
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Page 1 of4

Elementary High School High School Elementary High School Elementary
Transportation Transportation Schooi Food Tuition Tuition Retirement

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 250,047 $ 424,129 $ 118,641 $ 205,584 $ 112,164 $ 2,670,118
Receivables:

Taxes, het 151,560 91,447 12,003 19,531
Governments 13,285
Other 79,888

Total assets $ 401,607 $ 515,576 $ 211,814 $ 217,587 $ 131,695 $ 2,670,118

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 138,077 $ 80,228 $ 125,029 $ 100 $ 2,420 $ 61,620
Deferred raven us 130,455 74,824 10,423 15,967

Total liabilities 268,532 155,052 125,029 10,523 18,387 61,620

Fund balances:
Restricted 119,010 358,524 86,785 207,064 113,308 .2,608,498
Committed
Assigned 14,065 2,000

Total fund balances 133,075 360,524 86,785 207,064 113,308 2,608,498

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 401,607 $ 515,576 $ 211,814 $ 217,587 $ 131,695 $ 2,670,118
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Page 2 of4

Elementary High School Elementary High School High School
High School Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Adult Adult Traffic
Retirement Programs Programs Education Education Education

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,146,443 $ 1,687,224 $ 245,858 $ 343,809 $ 792,247 $ 199,751
Receivables:

Taxes, net 30,527 78,880
Governments 1,384,192 95,065 100,513
Other 11 2,063

Total assets $ 1,146,454 $ 3,073,479 $ 340,923 $ 374,336 $ 871,127 $ 300,264

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 42,007 $ 105,090 $ 18,848 $ 1,712 $ 34,004 $ 16,918
Deferred revenue 16,080 26,756 65,095

Totalliabililies 42,007 121,170 18,848 28,468 99,099 16,918

Fund balances:
Restricted 1,104,447 25,499 120,778 345,868 768,548 283,335
Committed
Assigned 2,926,810 201,297 3,480 11

Total fund balances 1,104,447 2,952,309 322,075 345,868 772,028 283,346

Totalliabllilles and fund baiances $ 1,146,454 $ 3,073,479 $ 340,923 $ 374,336 $ 871,127 $ 300,264
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31LLlNGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
~OMBINING BALANCE SHEET
,ONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Page 3 of4

Elementary High School
High School . Compensated Compensated Elementary High School Elementary

Lease Rental Absences Absences Technology Technology Flexibility
~SSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 410 $ 29,016 $ 9,574 $ 165,359 $ 86,220 $ 363,102
Receivables:

Taxes, net 69,044
Governments
Other

Total assets $ 410 $ 29,016 $ 9,574 $ 165,359 $ 155,264 $ 363,102

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ $ $ $ 45,850 $ 40,110 $
Deferred revenue 57,852

Total liabilities 45,850 97,962

Fund balances:
Restricted 410 29,016 9,574 119,509 57,302
Committed 363,102
Assigned

Total fund balances 410 29,016 9,574 119,509 57,302 363,102

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 410 $ 29,016 $ 9,574 $ 165,359 $ 155,264 $ 363,102
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 3D, 2011

Page 4 of4

High Elementary High School
School Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Flexibility Trust Trust Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 71,416 $ 622,325 $ 1,068,007 $ 10,611,444
Receivables: '

Taxes, net 452,992
Governments 1,593,055
Other 17,583 99,545

Total assets $ 71,416 $ 639,908 $ 1,068,007 $ 12,757,036

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabiltties:

Accounts payable $ $ 41,554 $ 15,212 $ 768,779
Deferred revenue 397,452

Totalliabiiities 41,554 15,212 1,166,231

Fund balances:
Restricted 6,357,475
Committed 71,416 598,354 1,052,795 2,085,667
Assigned 3,147,663

Total fund balances 71,416 598,354 1,052,795 11,590,805

Totalliabililies and fund balances $ 71,4'l'6 - $ 639,908 $ 1,068,007 $ 12,757,036
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Billings Public Schools
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Page1of4

High
Elementary High School High School Elementary School Elementary

Transportation Transportation School Food Tuition Tuition Retirement
REVENUES

Property taxes $ 1,934,196 $ 1,204,922 $ $ 142,880 $ 254,297 $
Intergovernmental:

County 490,444 269,339 8,544,330
State aid 55,589
State other 637,338 309,566 1,304,854
Federal 3,246,705

Charges for services 36,643 1,736 2,362,415
Interest 2,018 2,339 563 1,996 1,474 31,700
Miscellaneous

Total revenues 3,100,639 1,787,902 5,609,683 144,876 311,360 9,880,884

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction 90,791 273,613 7,143,412
Support services:

Students 933,052
Instructional staff 503,451
General administration 41,165
School administration 168,242 63,957 814,898
Business services 20,559 10,087 165,995
Operation and maintenance 567,382
Student transportation 3,247,584 1,717,287 146,464

Food services 5,773,335
Community services
Extracurricular 88,948
Otiher current charges

Capital outiay

Total expenditures 3,436,385 1,791,331 5,773,335 90,791 273,613 10,404,767

Net change in fund balances (335,746) (3,429) (163,652) 54,085 37,747 (523,883)

Fund balances - beginning 468,821 363,953 250,437 152,979 75,561 3,132,381

Fund balances - ending $ 133,075 $ 360,524 $ 86,785 $ 207,064 $ 113,308 $ 2,608,498
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Page 2 of4

Elementary High School Elementary High School High School
High School Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Aduit Adult Traffic
Retirement Programs Programs Education Education Education

REVENUES
Property taxes $ $ $ $ 391,439 $ 1,010,379 $
Intergovernmentai:

County 4,981,229
State aid
State other 623,221 1,704,620 254,960 100,513
Federal 12,162,575 500,477

Charges for services 308,242 226,972
Interest 13,705 54,554 13,139 3,552 5,947 2,282
Miscellaneous 22,547 183,492 20,069

Total revenues 5,618,155 13,944,296 952,068 415,060 1,324,568 329,767

EXPENDITURES
Current

Instruction 3,921,865 10,341,406 742,714 362,324 763,073 329,046
Support services:

Students 393,635 1,476,886 6,263 12,779 73,675
Instructional staff 329,491 323,348 82,830 702 2,600
General administration 21,286 3,318 3,556
School administration 535,018 301,421 2,496 52,007 414,858
Business services 103,799 79,173
Operation and maintenance 355,657 65,680 1,713 1,105
Student transportation 15,981 2,831

Food services 2,329 13,075
Community services
Extracurricular 212,444
Other current charges 12,874

Capital outlay 984,386 169,375 17,344

Total expenditures 5,904,379 13,512,351 1,090,120 427,812 1,272,655 329,046

Net change in fund baiances (286,224) 431,945 (138,052) (12,752) 51,913 721

Fund balances - beginning 1,390,671 2,520,364 460,127 358,620 720,115 282,625

Fund balances - ending $1,104,447 $ 2,952,309 $ 322,075 $ 345,868 $ 772,028 $ 283,346
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Billings Public Schools
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND::
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Page 3 014

High School Elementary High School
Lease Compensated Compensated Elementary High School Elementary
Rental Absences Absences Technology Technology Flexibility

REVENUES
Property taxes $ $ $ $ $ 1,029,044 $
Intergovemmental:

County
State aid
State other 64,732 37,360 170,203
Federal

Charges for services
Interest 4 2,726 103 899 4,097 2,237
Miscellaneous

Total revenues 4 2,726 103 65,631 1,070,501 172,440

EXPENDITURES
Current

Instruction 741,813
Support services:

Students
Instnuctional staff 308,795
General administration
School administration 159,658
Business services 46,485
Operation and maintenance 19,800
Student transportation

Food s8IVices
Community services
Extracurricular
Other current charges

Capital outlay 27,712

Talai expenditures 225,943 1,078,320

Net change in fund balances 4 (223,217) 103 65,631 (7,819) 172,440

Fund balances - beginning 406 252,233 9,471 53,878 65,121 190,662

Fund balances - ending $ 410 $ 29,016 $ 9,574 $ 119,509 $ 57,302 $ 363,102
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Page 4 of4

High Elementary High School
School Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Flexibility Trust Trust Total
REVENUES

Property taxes $ $ $ $ 5,967,157
Intergovernmental:

County 14,285,342
State aid 55,589
State other 169,994 5,377,361
Federal 15,909,757

Charges for services 2,936,008
Interest 1,070 6,489 9,960 160,854
Miscellaneous 442,871 666,531 1,335,310

Total revenues 171,064 449,160 676,491 46,027,378

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction 208,146 104,321 49,052 25,071,576
Support services:

Students 3,040 310,680 373,912 3,585,922
Instructional staff 12,929 1,564,146
General administration 69,325
School administration 2,512,555
Business services 426,098
Operation and maintenance 50 1,011,387
Student transportation 5,130,147

Food services 5,788,739
Community services 23,963 23,963
Extracurricular 301,392
Other current charges 12,874

Capital outlay 1,198,817

Total expenditures 211,166 427,980 446,927 46,696,941

Net change in fund balances (40,122) 21,180 229,564 (669,563)

Fund balances - beginning 111,538 577,174 823,231 12,260,363

Fund balances - ending $ 71,416 $ 593,354 $ 1,052,795 $ 11,590,305
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
ELEMENTARY TRANSPORTATION FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, BUdget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,994,089 $ 1,994,089 $1,934,196 $ $ 1,934,196
Intergovernmental:

County 490,105 490,105 490,444 490,444
State other 637,338 637,338 637,338 637,338

Charges for services 39,000 39,000 36,643 36,643
Interest 2,335 2,335 2,018 2,018

Total revenues 3,162,867 3,162,867 3,100,639 3,100,639

EXPENDITURES
Current

Support services:
School administration 78,765 139,072 168,242 168,242
Business services 22,412 20,574 20,559 20,559
Student transportation 3,412,736 3,354,267 3,261,649 (14,065) 3,247,584

Total expenditures 3,513,913 3,513,913 3,450,450 (14,065) 3,436,385

Net change in fund balances $ (351,046) $ (351,046) (349,811) 14,065 (335,746)

Fund balances - beginning 468,821 468,821

Fund balances - ending $ 119,010 $ 14,065 $ 133,075
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
HIGH SCHOOL TRANSPORTATION FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
BUdget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,232,430 $ 1,232,430 $ 1,204,922 $ $ 1,204,922
Intergovernmental:

County 269,000 269,000 269,339 269,339
State other 309,566 309,566 309,566 309,566

Charges for s81vices 1,736 1,736
Interest 2,339 2,339

Total revenues 1,810,996 1,810,996 1,787,902 1,787,902

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Support services:
School administration 116,488 116,488 63,902 55 63,957
Business services 10,419 10,462 10,087 10,087
Student transportation 1,791,810 1,791,767 1,719,287 (2,000) 1,717,287

Total expenditures 1,918,717 1,918,717 1,793,276 (1,945) 1,791,331

Net change In fund balances $ (107,721) $ (107,721) (5,374) 1,945 (3,429)

Fund baiances - beginning 363,898 55 363,953

Fund balances - ending $ 358,524 $ 2,000 $ 360,524
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
ELEMENTARY TUITION FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 147,020 $ 147,020 $ 142,880 $ $ 142,880
Interest 1,996 1,998

Tatal revenues 147,020 147,020 144,876 144,876

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction 300,000 300,000 90,791 90,791

Total expenditures 300,000 300,000 90,791 90,791

Net change in fund balances $ (152,980) $ (152,980) 54,085 54,085

Fund balances - beginning 152,979 152,979

Fund balances - ending $ 207,064 $ $ 207,064
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
HIGH SCHOOL TUITION FUND.
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budgetto Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 259,524 $ 259,524 $ 254,297 $ $ 254,297
Intergovernmental:

State aid 67,024 67,024 55,589 55,589
Interest 1,800 1,800 1,474 1,474

Total revenues 328,348 328,348 311,360 311,360

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction 403,909 403,909 273,613 273,613

Total expenditures 403,909 403,909 273,613 273,613

Net change in fund balances $ (75,561 ) $ (75,561 ) 37,747 37,747

Fund balances - beginning 75,561 75,561

Fund balances - ending $ 113,308 $ $ 113,308
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
ELEMENTARY RETIREMENT FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Intergovernmental:

County $ 8,707,620 $ 8,707,620 $ 8,544,330 $ $ 8,544,330
State other 1,304,854 1,304,854

Interest 40,000 40,000 31,700 31,700

Total revenues 8,747,620 8,747,620 8,576,030 1,304,854 9,880,884

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional 5,849,973 6,289,869 6,105,992 1,037,420 7,143,412
Support services:

Students 785,921 670,847 829,754 103,298 933,052
Instructional staff 521,502 459,243 447,190 56,261 503,451
General administration 53,960 32,520 37,916 3,249 41,165
Schooi administration 715,966 850,919 737,733 77,165 814,898
Business services 111,426 114,960 163,043 2,952 165,995

Operation and maintenance 575,576 441,353 555,629 11,753 567,382
Student transportation 117,210 107,669 143,903 2,561 146,464
Extracurricular 66,466 132,620 78,753 10,195 88,948

Total expenditures 8,800,000 9,100,000 9,099,913 1,304,854 10,404,767

Net change in fund balances $ (52,380) $ (352,380) (523,883) (523,883)

Fund baiances - beginning 3,132,381 3,132,381

,-
Fund baiances - ending $ 2,608,498 $ $ 2,608,498

A budget amendment for the Elementary Retirement account was passed to fund unforeseen retirements in the district.

State law requires bUdgets be prepared for certain funds - generaily those supported by property tax revenues. BUdgets
are prepared on the modified accrual basis. State law requires oniy that a fund's total expenditures not exceed total
budgeted expenditures.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
HIGH SCHOOL RETIREMENT FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original Budgetary GMP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Intergovernmental:

County $ 5,080,000 $ 5,080,000 $ 4,981,229 $ $ 4,981,229
State other 623,221 623,221

Interest 20,000 20,000 13,705 13,705

Total revenues 5,100,000 5,100,000 4,994,934 623,221 5,618,155

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional 3,518,003 3,466,645 3,446,933 474,932 3,921,865
Support services:

Students 340,180 482,155 346,853 46,782 393,635
Instructional staff 233,896 292,781 304,358 25,133 329,491
General administration 45,295 25,460 19,418 1,868 21,286
School administration 399,815 446,077 492,963 42,055 535,018
Business services 110,403 112,368 100,953 2,846 103,799

Operation and maintenance 280,060 274,512 348,311 7,346 355,657
Student transportation 15,150 12,946 15,656 325 15,981
Food services 603 1,933 2,329 2,329
Extracurricular 156,595 185,123 190,510 21,934 212,444
Other current charges 12,874 12,874

Total expenditures 5,100,000 5,300,000 5,281,158 623,221 5,904,379

Net change in fund balances $ $ (200,000) (286,224) (286,224)

Fund balances - beginning 1,390,671 1,390,671

Fund balances - ending $ 1,104,447 $ $ 1,104,447

A budget amendment for the High School Retirement account was passed to fund unforeseen· retirements in the district.

State law requires budgets be prepared for certain funds - generally those supported by property tax revenues. Budgets
are prepared on the modified accrual basis. State law requires only that a fund's totai expenditures not exceed total
budgeted expenditures.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
ELEMENTARY ADULT EDUCATION FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Properly taxes $ 405,631 $ 405,631 $ 391,439 $ $ 391,439
Interest 4,500 4,500 3,552 3,552
Miscellaneous 12,165 12,165 20,069 20,069

Total revenues 422,296 422,296 415,060 415,060

EXPENDITURES
Current

Instructional 506,995 501,303 362,302 22 362,324
Support services;

Students 17,249 20,749 12,779 12,779
Instructional staff 3,100 4,000 702 702
School administration 51,096 52,388 52,007 52,007

Total expenditures 578,440 578,440 427,790 22 427,812

Net change in fund balances $ (156,144) $ (156,144) (12,730) (22) (12,752)

Fund balances - beginning 358,596 22 358,620

Fund balances - ending $ 345,868 $ $ 345,868
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
HIGH SCHOOL ADULT EDUCATION FUND
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budgetto Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,033,785 $ 1,033,785 $ 1,010,379 $ $ 1,010,379
Charges for services 250,000 250,000 308,242 308,242
Interest 8,000 8,000 5,947 5,947

Total revenues 1,291,785 1,291,785 1,324,568 1,324,568

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional 742,065 886,753 764,175 (1,102) 763,073
Support services:

Students 200,564 152,081 73,675 73,675
Instructional staff 4,531 2,600 2,600 2,600
School administration 472,322 422,420 415,278 (420) 414,858

Operation and maintenance 41,747 2,303 865 240 1,105
Capital Outlay 26,136 21,208 15,584 1,760 17,344

Total expenditures 1,487,365 1,487,365 1,272,177 478 1,272,655

Net change in fund balances $ (195,580) $ (195,580) 52,391 (478) 51,913

Fund belances - beginning 716,157 3,958 720,115

Fund balances - ending $ 768,548 $ 3,480 $ 772,028
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
ELEMENTARY TECHNOLOGY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
HIGH SCHOOL TECHNOLOGY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original BUdgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $1,099,459 $ 1,099,459 $1,029,044 $ $ 1,029,044
Intergovernmental:

State other $ 37,360 $ 37,360 $ 37,360 $ $ 37,360
Interest 4,097 4,097

Total revenues 1,136,819 1,136,819 1,070,501 1,070,501

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional 57,133 780,201 741,813 741,813
Support services:

Instructional staff 404,808 308,795 308,795
Capital Outlay 1,144,807 16,931 27,712 27,712

Total expenditures 1,201,940 1,201,940 1,078,320 1,078,320

Net change in fund baiances $ (65,121) $ (65,121) (7,819) (7,819)

Fund balances - beginning 65,121 65,121

Fund balances - ending $ 57,302 $ $ 57,302
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
ELEMENTARY FLEXIBILITY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30,2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Intergovernmental:

State other $ 170,203 $ 170,203 $ 170,203 $ $ 170,203
Interest 2,237 2,237

Total revenues 170,203 170,203 172,440 172,440

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional 360,865 360,865

Total expenditures 360,865 360,865

Net change in fund balances $ (190,662) $ (190,662) 172,440 172,440

Fund balances - be9inning 190,662 190,662

Fund balances - ending $ 363,102 $ $ 363,102
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
HIGH SCHOOL FLEXIBILITY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

BUdgeted:

Debt Service Fund - (Elementary and High School) Debt Service funds are used to account for the
annual payment of principal, interest, and expenditures on long-term obligation debt. Under State of
Montana statutes, this fund is also used to pay special improvement district assessment charges
against District-owned property.



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
June 3D, 2011

Elementary High School
Debt Service Debt Service Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 111,676 $ 12,658 $ 124,334
Receivables:

Taxes, net 6,646 6,646

Total assets $ 118,322 $ 12,658 $ 130,980

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ $ 12,658 $ 12,658
Deferred revenue 6,646 6,646

Total liabilities 6,646 12,658 19,304

Fund baiances:
Restricted 111,676 111,676

Total fund balances 111,676 111,676

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 118,322 $ 12,658 $ 130,980
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Elementary High School
Debt Service Debt Service Total

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 11,962 $ $ 11,962
Intergovernmental:

Federal 110,058 188,742 298,800
Interest 1,094 1,094

Total revenues 123,114 188,742 311,856

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:

Interest and other charges 110,058 188,742 298,800

Total expenditures 110,058 188,742 298,800

Net change In fund balances 13,056 13,056

Fund balances - beginning 98,620 98,620

Fund balances - ending $ 111,676 $ $ 111,676
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND
ELEMENTARY DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, BUdget to Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
BUdget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ $ $ 11,962 $ $ 11,962
Intergovernmental:

Federal 110,058 110,058 110,058
Interest 1,094 1,094

Total revenues 110,058 123,114 123,114

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Interest and other charges 110,058 110,058 110,058

Total expenditures 110,058 110,058 110,058

Net change in fund balances $ $ 13,056 13,056

Fund balances - beginning 98,620 98,620

Fund balances - ending $ 111,676 $ $ 111,676
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND
HIGH SCHOOL DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, BUdgelto Actual

Original Budgetary GAAP Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Intergovernmental:

Federal $ $ 188,742 $ 188,742 $ $ 188,742

Total revenues 188,742 188,742 188,742

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

interest and 9ther charges 188,742 188,742 188,742

Total expenditures 188,742 188,742 188,742

Net change in fund balances $ $

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending $ $ $
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Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Budgeted:

Building Reserve Fund - (Elementary and High School) To account for the financial resources segregated for
the acquisition, construction or repair of major capital facilities.



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Elementary High School
Building BUilding
Reserve Reserve Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 310,105 $ 287,988 $ 598,093

Total assets $ 310,105 $ 287,988 $ 598,093

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 237 $ 117 $ 354

Total liabilities 237 117 354

Fund balances:
Restricted 309,868 287,871 597,739

Total fund balances 309,868 287,871 597,739

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 310,105 $ 287,988 $ 598,093
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2011

Elementary High School
Building Building
Reserve Reserve Total

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 27 $ 156 $ 183
Interest 3,315 3,977 7,292

Total revenues 3,342 4,133 7,475

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Support services:
Operation and maintenance 361 178 539

Capital outlay 116,929 116,929

Total expenditures 361 117,107 117,468

Net change in fund balances 2,981 (112,974) (109,993)

Fund balances - beginning 306,887 400,845 707,732

Fund balances - ending $ 309,868 $ 287,871 $ 597,739
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
ELEMENTARY BUILDING RESERVE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual
Amounts, Budget to Actual

Original BUdgetary GMP ·Amounts,
Budget Final Budget Basis Differences GAAP Basis

REVENUES
Property taxes $ $ $ 27 $ $ 27
Interest 3,315 3,315

Total revenues 3,342 3,342

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Operation and maintenance 10,050 361 361
Capital Outlay 306,887 296,837

Total expenditures 306,887 306,887 361 361

Net change in fund balances $ (306,887) $ (306,887) 2,981 2,981

Fund balances - beginning 306,887 306,887

Fund balances - ending $ 309,868 $ $ 309,868
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
HIGH SCHOOL BUILDING RESERVE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30,2011
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Internal Service Funds:

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement
basis.

Warehouse Fund - This fund is used to account for supplies, equipment and printing provided to other
departments of the Billings Public Schools.

Self-Insurance Health Fund - This fund is used to account for the insurance premiums collected and claims
paid out for employees, retirees and ex-employees on the COBRA plan.

Self-insurance Property Fund - This fund Is used to account for revenues collected and deductibles paid out
for property and liability claims.



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS-ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Self- Self-
Insurance Insurance

Warehouse Health Property Total
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,555 $ 3,412,203 $ 9,457 $ 3,441,215
Accounts receivables, net 2,617 405,675 408,292
Inventories 81,243 81,243
Prepaid items 95,686 95,686

Total current assets 103,415 3,913,564 9,457 4,026,436

Non-current assets:
Capital Assets:

Land and improvements 122,700 122,700
Buildings 1,691,183 1,691,183
Equipment and Furniture 632,465 632,465

Less accumulated depreciation (1,096,289) (1,096,289)

Total non-current assets 1,350,059 1,350,059

Total assets 1,453,474 3,913,564 9,457 5,376,495

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 15,562 1,303,030 1,318,592
Due to other funds 85,000 85,000
Unearned revenue 61,452 61,452
Compensated absences 7,271 2,334 9,605

Total current liabilities 107,833 1,366,816 1,474,649

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences 65,441 21,010 86,451
Other postemployment benefits 9,269,000 9,269,000

Total non-current liabilities 65,441 9,290,010 9,355,451

Totalliabilities 173,274 10,656,826 10,830,100

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 1,350,059 1,350,059
Unrestricted (69,859) (6,743,262) 9,457 (6,803,664)

Total net assets $ 1,280,200 $ (6,743,262) $ 9,457 $ (5,453,605)
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS­
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Self-Insurance Self-Insurance
Warehouse Health Property Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,371,731 $ 15,295,020 $ $16,666,751

Total operating revenues 1,371,731 15,295,020 16,666,751

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services - salaries 99,467 75,479 174,946
Personal services - benefits 30,358 7,083 37,441
Purchased professional and technical services 109 53,527 53,636
Purchased property services 76,119 474 16,150 92,743
Other purchased services 3,352 1,002,278 1,005,630
Supplies and materials 1,147,428 4,178 1,151,606
Insurance claims and expenses 13,976,004 13,976,004
Other postemployment benefits 1,548,000 1,548,000
Depreciation 40,815 40,815

Total operating expenses 1,397,648 16,613,496 69,677 18,080,821

Operating loss (25,917) (1,318,476) (69,677) (1,414,070)

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Interest revenue 1,160 32,276 591 34,027
Miscellaneous revenue 96,968 96,968
Miscellaneous expenses (90,443) (90,443)

Total non-operating revenues and expenses 7,685 32,276 591 40,552

Change in net assets (18,232) (1,286,200) (69,086) (1,373,518)

Net assets - beginning 1,298,432 (5,457,062) 78,543 (4,080,087)

Net assets - ending $ 1,280,200 $ (6,743,262) $ 9,457 $ (5,453,605)

-84-



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Fiduciary Funds

Private-Purpose Trust Funds:

Extracurricular Fund (Elementary and High School) - To account for revenue and expenditures involved with
extracurricular activities.

Agency Funds:

Payroll Clearing Fund (High School) - To account for payroll liabilities within one fund.

Cafeteria/Flex Plan Fund (High School) - To account for cafeteria plans under IRC Section 125 administered
by a third party.



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

June 30, 2011

Elementary High School
Extracurricular Extracurricular Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 523,367 $ 1,611,944 $ 2,135,311

Total assets 523,367 1,611,944 2,135,311

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 14,029 30,445 44,474

Total liabilities 14,029 30,445 44,474

NET ASSETS
Held in trust $ 509,338 $ 1,581,499 $ 2,090,837
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BIlliNGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2011

Elementary High School
Extracurricular Extracurricurar Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Student extracurricular activities $ 457,226 $ 2,370,530 $ 2,827,756
Investment earnings:

Interest 5,479 18,243 23,722

Total additions 462,705 2,388,773 2,851,478

DEDUCTIONS
Student extracurricular activities 426,202 2,398,826 2,825,028

Total deductions 426,202 2,398,826 2,825,028

Change in net assets 36,503 (10,053) 26,450

Net assets - beginning 472,835 1,591,552 2,064,387

Net assets - ending $ 509,338 $ 1,581,499 $ 2,090,837

-87-



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Balance Balance

July 1, 2010 Additions Deductions June 30,2011

PAYROLL CLEARING FUND
ASSETS

Cash $ 4,501,177 $104,249,501 $108,372,559 $ 378,119
Other receivables 453 453

Total assets 4,501,177 104,249,954 108,372,559 378,572

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 4,501,177 108,372,559 104,249,954 378,572

Total liabilities 4,501,177 108,372,559 104,249,954 378,572

CAFETERINFLEX PLAN FUND
ASSETS

Cash 207,784 1,340,646 1,326,120 222,310

Total assets 207,784 1,340,646 1,326,120 222,310

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 207,784 1,326,120 1,340,646 222,310

Total liabilities 207,784 1,326,120 1,340,646 222,310

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS

Cash 4,708,961 105,590,147 109,698,679 600,429
Other receivables 453 453

Total assets 4,708,961 105,590,600 109,698,679 600,882

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,708,961 109,698,679 105,590,600 600,882

Total liabilities $ 4,708,961 $ 109,698,679 $105,590,600 $ 600,882
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - EXTRACURRICULAR
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Balance Balance
Location Juiy 1, 2010 Revenues Expenditures June 30, 2011

Elementary and Middie School Curricuium $ 1.002 $ $ 1,002 $
High School Curriculum 20,683 20,683
Career Center 113,352 95,297 93,569 115,080
Senior High School 458,047 662,762 861,181 459,628
West High School 362,857 663,182 663,078 362,961
Skyview High School 298,888 693,205 706,716 285,377
Middle Schools-Athletics 308,037 116,598 72,540 352,095
Lewis & Clark Middle School 12,578 50,377 51,342 11,613
Lincoln Education Center - Vending & Mise 1,734 10 1,744
Riverside Middle School 36,876 60,854 61,814 35,916
Will James Middle School 36,194 64,295 70,520 29,969
Castlerock Middle School 34,120 77,425 75,286 36,259
Arrowhead Elementary 3,519 6,582 5,541 4,560
Beartooth Elementary 1,549 6,412 5,046 2,915
Bench Elementary 300 4,135 4,132 303
Bitterroot Elementary 1,113 711 1,084 740
Boulder Elementary 3,472 33 2,584 921
Broadwater Elementary 940 2,171 1,726 1,385
Burlington Elementary 3,118 13,758 11,338 5,538
Central Heights Elementary 3,243 2,749 3,031 2,961
McKinley Elementary 1,976 2,076 2,209 1,843
Meadowlark Elementary 1,109 5,207 4,620 1,696
Miles Elementary 6,372 8,067 9,792 4,647
Newman Elementary 1,007 3,796 2,786 2,017
Poly Elementary 302 7,195 6,642 855
Ponderosa Elementary 4,389 5,674 6,980 3,083
Special Olympics 597 597
Rose Park Elementary 504 397 894 7
Sandstone Elementary 3,631 1,949 2,276 3,304
Adult Education 31 1,004 975 60
Washington Elementary 214 608 97 725
Big Sky Elementary 4,462 7,087 9,771 1,778
Eagle Cliffs Elementary 73 70 3
Exec Director of Activities 320,638 227,008 205,262 342,384
Coordinator of Music 17,460 60,854 58,100 20,214

$ 2,064,387 $2,851,478 $2,825,028 $ 2,090,837

This scheduie has been summarized by school. A detail schedule is available upon request.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
ENROLLMENT SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 3D, 2011

Per Audit Per
Enrollment District

Fall Enrollment - October, 2010 Reports Records Difference
Elementary School District

Pre K - 6:
(a) Pre-Kindergarten 136 136
(b) Kindergarten (enrolled 720+ hours per year) 1,203 1,203
(c) Kindergarten (enrolled 181-719 hours per year) 2 2
(d) Kindergarten (enrolled < 181 hours per year)
(e) Grades 1-6 (enrolled 720+ hours per year) 6,923 6,923
(f) Grades 1-6 (enrolled 181-719 hours per year) 1 1
(g) Grades 1-6 (enrolled < 181 hours per year)

7-8:
(h) Grades 7-8 (enrolled 720+ hours per year) 2,291 2,291
(0 Grades 7-8 (enrolled 181-719 hours per year) 6 6
U) Grades 7-8 (enrolled < 181 hours per year) 3 3

(k) Total Elementary (add lines a through j) 10,565 10,565

High School District
(I) Grades 9-12 (enrolled 720+ hours per year) 5,111 5,111
(m) Grades 9-12 (enrolled 181-719 hours per year) 34 34
(n) Grades 9 - 12 (enrolled < 181 hours per year) 4 4

(0) Total High School (add lines I through n) 5,149 5,149

(p) 19 Year-aids included on line I 24 24

Spring Enrollment - February 2011
Elementary School District

Pre K- 6:
(q) Pre-Kindergarten 181 181
(r) Kindergarten (enrolled 720+ hours per year) 1,203 1,203
(s) Kindergarten (enrolled 181-719 hours per year) 3 3
(t) Grades 1-6 (enrolled 720+ hours per year) 6,929 6,929
(u) Grades 1-6 (enrolled 181-719 hours per year)
(v) Grades 1-6 (enrolled < 181 hours per year) 1 -

7-8:
(w) Grades 7-8 (enrolled 720+ hours per year) 2,294 2,294
(x) Grades 7-8 (enrolled 181-719 hours per year) 8 8
(y) Grades 7-8 (enrolled < 181 hours per year) 1 1

(z) Total Elementary (add lines q through y) 10,620 10,620

High School District
(aa) Grades 9-12 (enrolled 720+ hours per year) 4,961 4,961
(bb) Grades 9-12 (enrolled 181-719 hours per year) 38 38
(cc) Grades 9 -12 (enrolled < 181 hours per year) 5 5

(dd) Total High School (add lines z through bb) 5,004 5,004

(ee) 19 Year-aids included on line aa 21 21

(ff) Early Graduates 15 15
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SECTION III • STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of Billings Public Schools comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a means
for understanding what information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the district's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
district's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain informationto help the reader assess the district's
mostsignificant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities
take place.

Operating Information

The schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the district's financial report relates
to the services the district provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedUles is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Last Five Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 1

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Invested in capital assets, net of reiated debt $ 58,767,183 $ 61,191,582 $ 60,569,790 $ 60,775,788 $ 59,798,909

Restricted for:

Debt service 1,350,978 140,053 145,341 119,793 118,322

Other purposes 11,915,272 12,393,018 14,466,745 13,012,150 18,231,416

Unrestricted (deficit) (4,328,828) (6,105,856) (12,737,076) (15,821,877) (24,043,148)

Total governmentai activities net assets $ 67,706,605 $ 67,618,797 $ 62,444,800 $ 58,085,854 $ 54,105,499
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
La~ Five Fiscal Years
(accrual.•basis of accounting)

Table 2

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Expenses:

Instruction. $ 78,052,218 $ 85,812,039 $ 88,,164,245 $ 91,294,560 $ 94,100,760
Support services:

Students 9,117,020 9,298,820 9,601,125 10,384,550 10,978,889
Instructional staff 5,878,241 6,5p5,906 6,945,475 7,115,837 7,541,224
General administration 1,354,664 1,476,711 1,31 4,581 1,607,281 1,559,394
School administration 8,248,789 9,003,814 9,069,215 9,642,520 10,149,144
B!Jsiness services 1,842,122 2,019,626 1,8~0,984 1,948,020 2,258,772
Operation and maintenance 10,713,640 12,421,095 12,140,124 12,232,630 12,244,035
Student transportation 4,375,271 4,658,373 5,136,849 5,037,035 5,220,799

Food services 4,180,626 4,701,734 5,146,099 5,253,191 5,872,264
Community services 14,953 1.4,050 . ,19,891 26,36,3 30,563
Ex1racurriclJlar .

.' ,
1,920,491 2,291,969 . 2;328,064 2,351,072 2,458,540

Other current charges 11,479 12,350 12,874
Interest 177,913 117,618 29,399 46,167 316,332

Total expenses 125,875,948 138,371,755 141,785,530 146,951,576 152,743,590

Program revenues
Charges for services:

Instruction 6g530 626,047 712,110 782,219 733,494
Support services:

41,494Opera~ionsand maintenance 70,401 41,025 33,606 32,415
Student transportation 44,857 43,180 4~,381 42,288 38,379

Food services 2,253,548 2,305,026 2,367,209 2,378,896 2,362,415
Operating grants and contributions 27,164,473 28,928,094 26,530,143 33,980,885 37,940,986
Capital grants and contributions 240,298 628,251 892,912 77,188 77,586

Total program revenues 30,386,107 32,571,623 30,586,249 37,295,082 41,185,255

Net expense (95,489,841) (105,800,132) (111,199,281) (109,656,494) (111,558,335)

General revenues:
Property taxes 33,088,889 34,701,063 34,991,351 35,921,360 38,512,088
Intergovernmental:

State aid 46,174,525 48,956,800 50,341,181 49,764,090 48,029,784
State other 6,173,289 5,714,923 5,724,096 5,678,388 5,721,040
County 11,252,174 11,946,780 13,211,358 12,124,782 13,525,559

Interest 1,050,145 1,064,579 681,026 411,620 293,422
Contributions and donations 1,146,765 581,134 835,415 937,984 1,146,735
Miscellaneous 209,184 271,266 235,112 459,324 269,744
Gain on disposal of capital assets 242,559 2,475,779

Transfers 5,745

Total general revenues 99,337,530 105,712,324 106,025,284 105,297,548 107,498,372

Change in net assets $ 3,847,689 $ (87,808) $ (5,173,997) $ (4,358,946) $ (4,059,963)
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Five Fiscal Years
(mod.ified :accrual basis of accounting)

Tabie 3

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Generai fund

Reserved $ 401,505 $ 28,815 $ 362,860 $ 293,025 $
Unreserved 3,520,361 4,856,734 5,327,292 5,058,315
Assigned 223,775
Unassigned· 3,792,265

Total general fund $ 3,921,866 $ 4,885,549 $ 5,690,152 $ 5,351,340 $ 4,016,040

Ail other governmental funds
Reserved $ 1,299,601 $ 264,236 $ 224,169 $ 102,655 $
Unreserved, reported in;

Special revenue funds 11,762,496 10,557,303 16,060,472 15,374,310
Capital projects funds 2,822,725 4,266,136 1,181,569 1,167,397

Restricted 17,959,108
Committed 2,085,667
Assigned 7,020,122

Total ail other governmental funds $ 15,884,822 $ 15,087,675 $ 17,466,210 $ 16,644,362 $ 27,064,897

1

1 The District adopted GASB Statement No. 54-Fund Baiance Reporting and Govemmentai Fund Type Definitions,
effective Juiy 1, 2010
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BIL,L1NGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Five Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 4

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009 , 2010 2011
Revenues

Property· taxes $ 32,619,080 $ 35,073,362 $ 35,782,052 $ 35,327,094 $ 37,869,957
Intergovernmental:

County 12,037,153 12,709,341 13,97Q,410 12,883,209 14,285,342
State aid 46,174,525 48,956,800 50,341,1~1 49,764,090 48,029,784
Stateotrer 19,476,346 21,492,469 19,256,945 21,216,653 19,694,027
FeQeral 12,740,171 12,387,987 12,177,195 17,684,193 22,964,040

Tuition 211,263 195,406 148,290 201,019 216,974
. ""'

Charges for services 2,784,051 2,839,302 2,963,437 3,034,287 2,968,423
Interest 985,219 975,588 577,704 358,384 259,395
Miscellaneous 1,915,554 1,451 ,927 1,708,205 1,397,308 1,417,179

Total revenues 128,943,362 136,082,182 136,925,419 141,866,237 147,705,121

Expenditure,s
Instruction .. 75,118,883 81,669,804 80,508,<l74 85,968,472 90,169,831
Support services:

8,585,269Students 9,057,352 9,1Q1,560 10,028,276 10,774,961
Instructional staff 5,992,282 6,445,953 6,656,922 6,934,825 7,370,246

. General administration 1,238,727 1,372,481 1,270,351 1,561,130 1,470,957
School administration 7,969,204 8,984,368 8,554,701 9,274,540 10,048,181
Business services 1,734,354 1,896,926 1,688,771 1,791,715 2,208,878
Operations and maintenance 10,529,579 12,311,325 11,749;344 11,946,381 12,025,975
Student transportation 4,338,968 4,636,606 5,049,102 4,961,862 5,177,545

Food services 4,117,271 4,629,179 5,068,481 5,109,148 5,788,739
Community services 14,953 14,050 19,891 26,363 30,563
Extracurricular 1,846,502 2,213,481 2,225,258 2,340,782 2,410,349
Other current charges 11,479 12,350 12,874
Capital outlay 3,440,539 2,924,602 2,535,609 2,797,520 2,725,219
Debt service

Principal 2,576,269 2,682,454 150,143 229,595 236,253
interest 153,967 93,796 64,196 42,301 515,521

Total expenditures 127,656,767 138,932,377 134,654,182 143,025,260 150,966,092

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,286,595 (2,850,195) 2,271,237 (1,159,023) (3,260,971)

other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 322,502 370,545 181,725
Transfers o'ut (322,502) (349,511) (188,362)
Insurance 112,617 281,206
Long-term debt issued 408,564 773,250 12,000,000
Sale of capital assets 247,559 2,608,167 . 5,000 5,000 65,000

Total other financin9 sources (uses) 247,559 3,016,731 911,901 (1,637) 12,346,206

Net change i'nJund balances $ 1,534,154 $ 166,536 $ 3,183,138 $ (1,160,660) $ 9,085,235

Debt service as a percentage of
non-capital expenditures 2.20% 2,04% 0.16% 0.19% 0,51%
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31LL1NGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
,ENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
.ast Five Fiscal Years
modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 5

Support SelVices

Instructional General School Business Operation and
Year Instruction Students Staff Administration Administration Services Maintenance

2007 $ 55,197,847 $ 5,740,609 $ 4,636,544 $ 1,132,599 $ 6,386,532 $ 969,121 $ 8,316,670
2008 60,765,662 6,242,820 5,050,350 1,299,542 7,237,252 1,080,768 8,717,531
2009 60,197,185 6,270,596 5,132,096 1,207,359 6,854,511 1,402,720 10,639,761
2010 62,217,372 6,412,634 5,000,683 1,455,004 7,182,901 1,317,101 10,750,560
2011 65,096,669 7,187,725 5,803,981 1,311,896 7,535,626 1,782,780 10,828,842

Support SelVices

Student Communily
Year Transportation SelVices Extracurricular Capital Outlay Debt Service Total

2007 $ 13,657 $ 6,600 $ 1,618,881 $ 69,834 $ 47,516 $ 84,136,410
2008 17,616 6,600 1,936,752 294,915 82,500 92,732,308
2009 47,181 6,600 1,984,423 653,694 150,143 94,546,269
2010 81,841 13,200 2,065,022 463,818 245,740 97,205,876
2011 47,398 6,600 2,108,957 567,459 243,574 102,521,507
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTIONS
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 6

Percent of
Fiscal Assessed Mill Taxes Tax Tax Collections
Year Valuation Levy Levied Collections' To Taxes Levied

Elementary District:

2002 $ 128,868,579 127.86 $ 16,477,137 $ 16,431,385 99.72%
2003 130,715,146 142.74 18,658,280 18,008,740 96.52%
2004 132,441,976 142.98 18,936,554 19,204,919 101.42%
2005 136,732,413 151.35 20,694,451 20,411,068 98.63%
2006 143,178,931 152.52 21,837,651 21,625,072 99.03%
2007 147,991,032 135.32 20,026,146 20,140,046 100.57%
2008 157,587,840 131.28 20,688,132 20,664,888 99.89%
2009 166,020,027 121.87 20,232,861 20,566,137 101.65%
2010 167,860,468 123.45 20,722,375 19,532,418 94.26%
2011 175,218,296 128.81 22,569,869 21,435,922 94.98%

High School District:

2002 160,982,681 71.03 11,434,600 11,392,222 99.63%
2003 160,993,951 77.62 12,496,350 12,388,988 99.14%
2004 167,565,854 81.35 13,631,482 13,736,169 100.77%
2005 173,527,878 71.53 12,412,449 12,306,074 99.14%
2006 181,865,729 72.47 13,179,809 13,102,976 99.42%
2007 188,925,557 65.51 12,376,513 12,398,385 100.18%
2008 201,862,127 71.68 14,469,477 14,408,474 99.58%
2009 214,427,450 70.31 15,076,394 15,215,915 100.93%
2010 220,537,239 70.42 15,530,232 14,601,758 94.02%
2011 231,740,662 70.92 16,435,048 15,662,531 95.30%

• Tax collections through fiscal year 2009 include delinquentlaxes from prior years.
Effective July 1, 2009, tax collections include only current year tax collections
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 7

Percent of
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Value to
Year Velue Actual Value Est Actual Value

Elementary District:

2002 $ 128,868,579 $3,694,399,704 3.49%
2003 130,715,146 3,880,213,213 3.37%
2004 132,441,976 4,004,963,619 3.31%
2005 136,732,413 4,476,606,150 3.05%
2006 143,178,931 5,110,110,578 2.80%
2007 147,991,032 5,110,110,578 2.90%
2008 157,587,840 5,498,218,964 2.87%
2009 166,020,027 5,114,046,567 3.25%
2010 167,860,468 5,335,244,057 3.15% l
2011 175,218,296 6,623,402,263 2.65% ,

,

High School District:

2002 160,982,681 4,632,064,119 NfA
2003 160,993,951 4,892,349,410 3.29%
2004 167,565,854 5,071,668,445 3.30%
2005 173,527,878 5,648,849,952 3.07%
2006 181,865,729 6,458,283,952 2.82%
2007 188,925,557 6,458,283,952 2.93%
2008 201,862,127 6,986,260,379 2.89%
2009 214,427,450 6,659,116,956 3.22%
2010 220,537,239 7,075,610,744 3.12%
2011 231,740,662 8,623,253,538 2.69%

Source: Montana Department of Revenue
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PROPERTY TAX RATES AND TAX LEVIES
Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 8

Tax Rates (per $1 000 of taxable value)

Billings Billings
Fiscal Elementary High School Cily of Yellowstone State of
Year District District Billings County Montana Total

2002 127.86 71.03 105.34 99.54 46.00 449.77
2003 142.74 77.62 110.23 107.42 46.00 484.01
2004 142.98 81.35 110.23 120.74 46.00 501.30
2005 151.35 71.53 113.73 126.43 46.00 509.04
2006 152.52 72.47 132.81 130,82 46.00 534.62
2007 135.32 65.51 141.58 140.49 46.00 528.90
2008 131.28 71.68 157.53 146.86 46.00 553.35
2009 121.87 70.31 163.65 139.69 46.00 541.52
2010 123.45 70.42 171.28 , 140.58 46.00 551.73
2011 128.81 70.92 171.42 156.75 102.50 630.40

*'2011 State of Montana mills includes: equalization, university, high school, elementary and va-tech mills
Prior years had only included equaiization and university mills

Tax Levies

Billings Billings
Fiscal Elementary High School City of Yellowstone State of
Year District District Billings County Montana Total

2002 $ 16,477,137 $ 11,434,600 $ 11,484,409 $ 15,359,804 $ 5,714,104 $ 60,470,054
2003 18,658,280 12,496,350 12,188,312 17,514,194 6,163,014 67,020,150
2004 18,936,554 13,631,482 12,858,681 20,675,536 6,663,547 72,765,800
2005 20,694,451 12,412,449 13,774,151 21,854,305 7,146,050 75,881,406
2006 21,837,651 13,179,809 16,740,890 23,922,136 7,706,215 83,386,701
2007 20,026,146 12,376,513 18,622,292 27,029,907 8,284,181 86,339,039
2008 20,688,132 14,469,477 23,538,963 36,171,218 8,905,495 103,773,285
2009 20,232,861 15,076,394 25,058,182 36,999,906 12,183,812 109,551,155
2010 20,722,375 15,530,232 27,195,578 39,791,526 13,020,417 116,260,128
2011 22,569,869 16,435,048 27,591,420 44,593,181 30,663,022 141,852,540

Source: Yellowstone County Finance Department
Source: City of Billings, Montana
Source: Montana Tax Foundation

-98-



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS IN THE ELEMENTARY DISTRICT
Current Year and Five Years Ago

Table 9

2011 2007

Percentage of Percentage of
Total District Total District

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation

ConocoPhillips Company $ 14,369,959 1 8.20% $ 8,574,191 2 2.47%
Northwestern Corp 9,467,131 2 5.40% 13,469,696 1 3.89%
Bresnan Broadband Holdings LLC 7,060,040 3 4.03% 0.00%
PPL Montana LLC 3,373,318 4 1.93% 3,861,855 5 1.11%
Owest Corporation 3,145,936 5 1.80% 4,890,535 3 1.41%
MDU -Gas 1,542,024 6 0.88% 1,304,531 6 0.38%
Verizon 1,065,596 7 0.61% 0.00%
Walmart 776,378 8 0.44% 0.00%
Conoco Pipeline Company 725,385 9 0.41% 799,538 10 0.23%
Macerich 651,868 10 0.37% 875,526 9 0.25%
Western Sugar Company 626,362 0.36% 0.00%
Rocky Mountain Pipeline LLC 432,526 0.25% 0.00%
Montana Rail Link 345,190 0.20% 0.00%
Pudget Sound Energy Incorporated 0.00% 1,008,280 7 0.29%
Yellowstone Valley Electric Coop 610,720 0.35% 941,334 8 0.27%

Total $ 44,192,433 25.22% $ 35,725,486 10.30%

Source: Montana Department of Revenue
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS IN THE HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Current Year and Five Years Ago

Table 9a

2011 2007

Percentage of Percentage of
Total District Total District

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation

ConocoPhiJIips Company $ 14,373,084 1 6.20% $ 8,574,191 2 2.47%
Northwestern Corp 11,102,204 2 4.79% 13,469,696 1 3.89%
Exxon Mobile Corporation 9,522,356 3 4.11% 4,677,871 1 1.35%
Bresnan Broadband 7,060,040 4 3.05% 0.00%
Qwest Corporation 3,480,493 5 1.50% 4,890,535 3 1.41%
PPL Montana LLC 3,389,060 6 1.46% 3,861,855 5 1.11%
MDU Company 1,542,024 7 0.67% 1,304,531 6 0.38%
Verizon Wireless 1,302,763 8 0.56% 0.00%
Conoco Pipeline Company . 915,707 9 0.40% 799,538 10 0.23%
Walmart 776,378 10 0.34% 0.00%
Yellowstone Valley Electric 757,785 0.33% 941,334 8 0.27%
Macerich 651,868 0.28% 875,526 9 0.25%
Pudget Sound Energy Incorporated 0.00% 1,008,280 7 0.29%

Total $ 54,873,762 23.68% $ 40,403,357 11.65%

Source: Montana Department of Revenue
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
REVENUE BY SOURCE - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 10

Actual Percent of
Source Revenue Total Revenue

Revenue from local and intermediate sources:

Property taxes $ 37,869,957 25.64%
Tuition 216,974 0.15%
Interest 259,395 0.18%
Charges for service 2,968,423 2.01%
County retirement 13,525,559 9.15%
County transportation 759,783 0.51%
Miscellaneous 1,496,787 1.01%

Total revenUe from local and intermediate sources 57,096,878 38.65%

Revenue from state sources:

Direct state aid 32,666,256 22.10%
State quality educator 3,537,061 2.39%
State maintenance 184,789 0.13%
State Indian education for all 330,643 0.22%
State American Indian achievement 9ap 258,200 0.17%
State special ed allowable cost payment 5,020,128 3.40%
State guaranteed tax base aid 15,363,528 10.40%
State transportation 759,105 0.51%
State school block 9rant 5,530,349 3.74%
State on-behalf payment 1,928,075 1.30%
State other 2,145,677 1.45%

Total revenue from state sources 67,723,811 45.81%

Revenue from federal sources:

Federal grants 19,717,335 13.34%
Federal food service 3,246,705 2.20%

Total revenue from federal sources 22,964,040 15.54% ,
Total revenue $ 147,784,729 100.00%

Source: District Financial Records

-101-



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
GENERAL FUND REVENUE BY SOURCE
Last Five Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 11

Property State of
Year Taxes Montana Federal Tuition Interest Miscellaneous Total

2007 $ 26,213,125 $ 58,050,178 $ $ 211,263 $ 71,821 $ 4,813 $ 84,551,200
2008 29,915,283 63,450,861 195,406 84,912 49,529 93,695,991
2009 30,661,819 64,844,217 148,290 75,979 9,263 95,739,568
2010 30,054,248 63,876,342 2,493,094 201,019 64,393 177,968 96,867,064
2011 31,890,655 62,290,861 6,755,483 216,974 32,234 101,186,207
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
GENERAL FUND REVENUE PER STUDENT
Last Five Fiscal years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 12

District State Federal Total October Revenue Per Student
Year Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Enrollment District State Federal Total

2007 $ 26,501,022 $ 58,050,178 $ $ 84,551,200 15,556 $1,704 $3,732 $ $ 5,436
2008 30,245,130 63,450,861 93,695,991 15,503 1,951 4,093 6,044
2009 30,895,351 64,844,217 95,739,568 15,481 1,996 4,189 6,185
2010 30,497,628 63,876,342 2,493,094 96,867,064 15,676 1,945 4,075 159 6,179
2011 32,139,863 62,290,861 6,755,483 101,186,207 15,714 2,045 3,964 430 6,439

Source: District Records
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
Last Five Fiscal Years

Construction 3

Commercial Residential 4

Fiscal Property Bank Deposits Number of Number of
Year Value 1 (in thousands) 2 Permits Value Permits Value

2007 $ 6,986,260,379 $ 2,222,151 88 $ 87,937,071 5,6 496 $ 89,502,065
2008 6,659,116,956 2,451,699 69 107,949,910 7 388 71,378,452
2009 7,075,610,744 3,144,622 71 63,332,381 227 38,331 ;029
2010 8,623,253,538 3,605,242 67 61,242,125 278 51,019,706
2011 7,974,802,129 3,442,577 73 33,935,507 8 209 42,143,098

Sources and other information:
1 State of Montana Department of Revenue.
2 FDIC
3 Building Department (new construction permits), City of Billings, Montana.
4 Single family only.
5 Commercial values increased although the number of permits issued decreased

because a new commercial area was being developed and additions to already active projects, which includes hotels, a hospital
and an educational facility. Other large projects in the City include a new parking garage, courthouse
and trauma care center.

6 For fiscal years beginning in 2006, the property value includes the Tax Increment District.
7 2008 included $27 million in permits from one of the medial centers located in Billings.

Other large projects included a senior living center, a motel, office buildings, retail stores,
a bank processing center and additions to a church.

8 Due to the slow economy the value of commercial projects has been reduced, while the number of permits has remained similar

Table 13
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I?,I,tLH-J~S p,UB,LfCSCHOOLS "
R?!io .tlf Gen~ral Obligation Bondecl D<:>btOutstanding
Liist Tiiil Fiscal Years, ' '

Table 14

Percentage of NetG,O,

Net Generai Net G,O, Bonded Bonded
Fiscal Assessed Obligation Debt to Debt per
Year Population Vaiue Bonded De,bt Assessed Value Capita

Eiementary District

2002 91,195 $ 128,868,579 $ 0,00% $
2003 93,388 130,715,146 0,00%
2004 97,253 132,44j ,976 10,000,000 7,55% 102,82

2005 9~,198 136,732,413 7,620,000 5,57% 76,82

20Q6 100,148 143,178,931 5,155,000 3,60% 51.47
2007 101,650 147,991,032 2,615;000 1,77% 25,73

2008 102,000 157,587,840 0,00% l
2009 102,500 166,020,027 0,00%

2010 105,500 167,860,468 0,00%

2011 ,107,934 175,218,296 4,420,000 2,52% 40,95

High Schooi District

2002 106,150 $ 160,982,681 $ 5,435,000 3,38% $ 51,20

2003 107,250 160,993,951 3,505,000 2,18% 32,68

2004 108,350 167,565,854 1,510,000 0,90% 13,94
2005 109,450 173,527,878 0,00%
2006 110,550 181,865,729 0,00%

2007 111,650 188,925,557 0,00%
2008 113,000 201,862,127 0,00%
2009 121,700 214,427,450 0,00%
2010 125,000 220,537,239 0,00%

2011 123,145 231,740,662 7,580,000 3.27% 61,55

Total Debt $ 12,000,000

Source and other information: ~

1 Census taken every ten years, Actual census figures given for 2001,
2 All other years are estimated by City/County Planning department, Yellowstone County, Montana
3 Department Revenue/State of MontanalYeliowstone County, Montana, Assessors office

(these amounts do not include the incremental increases to the tax increment district),
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Table 15

Fiscal Year
Elementary District:

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Maximum debt limit $ 114,004,638 $ 140,269,440 $ 144,564,325 $ 159,167,625 $ 163,878,075

Total net debt applicable to limit 2,834,141 447,685 357,139 259,758 5,167,666

Legal ~ebt margin $ 111,170,497 $ 139,821,755 $ 144,207,186 $ 158,907,867 $ 158,710,409

Total net debt applicable to limit
as a percentage of debt limit 2.49% 0.32% 0.25% 0.16% 3.15%

High School District:

Maximum debt limit $ 131,491,917 $ 153,391,170 $ 163,003,680 $ 179,107,520 $ 174,945,980

Total net debt applicable to limit 107,935 220,501 175,904 127,940 7,657,779

Legal debt margin $ .131,383,982 $ 153,170,669 $ 162,827,776 $ 178,979,580 $ 167,288,201

Total net debt applicable to limit 0.08% 0.14% 0.11% 0.07% 4.38%
as a percentage of debt limit

DEBT LIMITATION CALCULATION .Elementary High School

2010/11 Statewide Average Per ANB $ 30,390 $ 64,520
XFY11ANB 10,785 5;423

Total 327,756,150 349,891,960

X Debt Limit Rate of .50 0.50 0.50

Equals: Maximum Debt Capacity 163,878,075 174,945,980

Less: Bonds Outstanding 5,009,750 7,580,000

General Obligation Debt 157,916 77,779

Estimated Debt Capacity Remaining $ 158,710,409 $ 167,288,201

Note: ANB, Average Number Belonging, is calcuiated by averaging the previous years fali and spring enroliment figures.

Montana Codes Annotated Section 20-9-406 provides for the issuance of bonds to an amount not to
exceed the greater of 1) 50% of the latest available taxable valuation of property which is subject to
taxation within the District or 2) the statewide average taxable valuation per student multiplied by the
average number of students belonging in a particular district mUltiplied by 50%. The District used the
statewide average taxable value method.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Table 16

Governmental Unit Debt
Applicable to

Elementary District

Applicable to Portion
of High School District

Lying Outside Elementary District

Percent Amount Percent Amount

Billings Elementary District $ 5,009,750 100.00% $ 5,009,750 0.00% $

Billings High School District 7,580,000 88.00% 6,670,400 12.00% 909,600

Totais $ 12,589,750 $ 11,680,150 $ 909,600

OVERLAPPING BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

Yellowstone County:

Various Issues $ 7,595,000 60.60% $ 4,602,570 39.40% $ 2,992,430

City of Billings:

Various Issues 24,701,722 83.50% 20,625,938 16.50% 4,075,784

Totais $ 44,886,472 $ 36,908,658 $ 7,977,814

Source and other information:
Does not Include special assessment with government commitment or tax increment debt
Finance Department, Yellowstone County, Montana.
City of Billings, Montana
The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the District Is estimated using taxable property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the other government's taxable value

that is within the district's boundaries and dividing it by the other government's total taxable value.
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION
BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL SUBFUND EXPENDITURES
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(budget basis of accounting)

Table 17

Percentage of
Total Total Debt Service to

Fiscal Interest and Debt General Subfund General Subfund
Year Principal Fiscal Charges Service Expenditures Expenditures

Elementary:

2002 $ 64,110 $ 890 $ 65,000 $ 42,797,761 0.2%
2003 45,470,168 0.0%
2004 45,634,306 0.0%
2005 2,380,000 248,400 2,628,400 46,320,009 5.7%
2006 2,465,000 196,180 2,661,180 50,069,551 5.3%
2007 2,540,000 141,950 2,681,950 52,109,893 5.1%
2008 2,615,000 78,750 2,693,750 57,048,871 4.7%
2009 58,207,632 0.0%
2010 60,318,907 0.0%
2011 84,250 110,058 194,308 64,858,599 0.3%

High School:

2002 $ 1,840,000 $ 305,089 $ 2,145,089 $ 26,042,112 8.2%
2003 1,930,000 119,925 2,049,925 28,498,543 7.2%
2004 1,995,000 78,575 2,073,575 28,975,354 7.2%
2005 1,510,000 31,870 1,541,870 29,453,050 5.2%
2006 30,779,438 0.0%
2007 32,026,517 0.0%
2008 35,683,437 0.0%
2009 36,402,333 0.0%
2010 36,886,969 0.0%
2011 188,742 188,742 37,662,908 0.5%

Source: Distrtct Financial Records
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 18

Per Capita Median School Unemployment
Year Population Income Age Enrollment Rate

2002 106,150 25,632 36.9 15,732 4.5%
2003 107,250 25,323 36.9 15,778 3.4%
2004 108,350 26,057 36.9 15,737 3.1%
2005 109,450 23,884 36.9 15,716 3.3%
2006 110,550 22,316 36.8 15,704 3.5%
2007 111,650 26,491 39.3 15,556 2.6%
2008 113,000 28,427 37.5 15,503 3.1%
2009 121,700 30,427 36.8 15,481 4.4%

2010 125,000 32,427 38.1 15,676 5.8%
c

2011 123,145 33,289 38.3 15,714 5.6%

Source: Bureau of Business and Economic Research

,~
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

2011 2002
Percentage Percentage

Number of ofTotal City Number of ofTotal City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment--- ---
Billings Clinic 3,499 1 4.5% 2,690 1 3.8%
Avitus Group 2,430 2 3.1% 1,832 4 2.6%
Sl. Vincent Health Care 2,100 3 2.7% 1,900 3 2.7%
Billings Public Schools 1,921 4 2.4% 2,023 2 2.8%
Walmart 985 5 1.3% 870 6 1.2%
City of Billings 962 6 1.2% 768 7 1.1%
Wells Fargo Bank & Operations 900 7 1.1% 1,196 5 1.7%
Sl. Johns 597 8 0.8% 390 10 0.5%
Montana State University-Billings 573 9 0.7% 539 8 0.8%
Yellowstone County* 431 10 0.5% 469 9 0.7%
Stillwater Mining Company 221 11 0.3% 233 11 0.3%
All others 63,963 81.4% 58,788 82.0%

Total 78,582 100.0% 71,698 100.0%

**FT employees no temporary workers Induded
Source: Montana Research and Analysis Bureau-State of Montana, and individual employers.

Table 19
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
OPERATING STATISTICS
Last Five Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Pupil!
Cost Certified Certified

Fiscai per Percentage Staff Staff
Year Expenses 1 Enrollment Pupil Change (FTE) 2 Ratio

2007 $ 127,668,852 15,556 $ 8,207 6% 1,144.4 13.6
2008 138,371,755 15,503 8,925 8% 1,201.8 12.9
2009 141,785,530 15,481 9,159 3% 1,169.2 13.2
2010 147,171,358 15,676 9,388 2% 1,163.4 13.5
2011 152,743,590 15,714 9,720 3% 1,133.2 13.9

1 Expenses are from Statement of Activities
2 Certified Staff is comprised of Teachers, Librarians, Counselors, Psychologists,

Speech Pathologists, OT/PT, Social Workers, Audiologists and Grant Writers.

Table 20

-111-



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS Table 21

EMPLOYEE FULL TIME EQUIVALENCY (FTE) BY FUNCTION
Last Five Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
instruction

Certified Staff 1,007.0 1,067.9 1,031.5 1,027.3 992.9
Classified Employees 192.1 191.6 196.5 194.6 196.6

Support Services
Administrators 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Administrative Support 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Certified Staff 135.4 131.9 135.7 134.1 137.3
Classified Employees 65.1 65.6 64.3 63.2 64.2

General Administration
Administrators 6.5 6.7 7.7 8.7 8.3
Administrative Support 13.5 12.5 11.5 11.5 10.5
'Certified Staff 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0
Classified Employees 23.1 22.5 21.4 19.4 21.6

Building Administration
Administrators 42.5 48.0 46.0 45.9 45.9
Administrative Support 1.0 1.0
Certified Staff 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Classified Employees 79.2 81.3 80.2 79.4 79.7

Operations and Maintenance
Administrators 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Classified Employees 122.1 142.9 144.8 143.2 144.7

Student Transportation
Administrators 1.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.3
Administrative Support 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Classified Employees 32.5 34.2 31.5 28.9 28.6

Extracurricular Activities
Administrators 1.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 1.0
Classified Employees 3.5 2.7 2.0 2.0 2.0

Total 1,736.5 1,822.8 1,787.1 1,771.2 1,745.6

Admin Certified Classified Total
Fiscal 2011 Summary Admin Support Staff Employees HE

Instruction 992.9 196.6 1,189.5
Support Services 5.0 1.0 137.3 64.2 207.5
General Administration 8.3 10.5 2.0 21.6 42.4
BUilding Administration 45.9 1.0 79.7 126.6
Operations and Maintenance 2.0 144.7 146.7
Student Transportation 1.3 28.6 29.9
Extracurricular Activities 1.0 2.0 3.0

Total 63.5 11.5 1,133.2 537.4 1,745.6

Source: District Records
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
CERTIFIED STAFF EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE
November 1, 2010

Table 22

Full Time Percent of
Educational Attainment Equivalent Total

Bachelor's Degree 104.52 9%

Bacheior's Degree + 15 Credits 59.00 5%

Bachelor's Degree + 30 Credits 68.60 6%

Bachelo~s Degree + 46 Credits 71.50 6%

Bacheior's Degree + 60 Credits 44.83 4%

Bachelo~s Degree + 75 Credits 52.77 5%

Bachelor's Degree + 90 Credits 45.97 4%

Bachelor's Degree + 105 Credits 143.67 13%

Master's Degree 115.82 10%

Master's Degree + 15 Credits 44.10 4%

Master's Degree + 30 Credits 52.87 5%

Master's Degree + 45 Credits 324.87 29%

Doctorate's Degree 4.80 0%

Total 1,133.32 100%

Full Time Percent of
Years of Experience Equivalent Total

0-5 312.60 28%

6-10 223.26 20% ,-

11-15 190.70 17%

16-20 178.40 16%

21-25 66.26 6%

26 and Above 162.10 14%

Total 1,133.32 100%

Source: District Records

-113-



BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS Table 23
EDUCATIONAL BUILDING DATA
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2011

Year Current Percentage
Year Additions Square Functional of Capacity
Built Built Footage Capacity Enrollment Used

Elementary
K-6 Schools:

Alkali Creek 1979 43,591 391 389 99.49%
Arrowhead 1978 41,714 437 484 110.76%
Beartooth 1974 1980 40,330 370 434 117.30%
Bench 1955 1974, 1978 39,817 368 357 97.01%
Big Sky 1986 45,000 391 400 102.30%
Bitterroot 1964 1965,1970 31,690 322 324 100.62%
Boulder 1962 1971 40,055 414 445 107.49%
Broadwater 1910 1916, 1920, 1956 34,429 322 350 108.70%
Burlington 1956 1957 32,868 322 356 110.56%
Central Heights 1962 1965, 1979 38,785 322 350 108.70%
Eagle Cliffs 1986 46,600 437 411 94.05%
Hi9hland 1947 1956 30,994 253 287 113.44%
McKinley 1906 1918,1958 30,072 322 322 100.00%
Meadowlark 1964 1971 43,256 414 577 139.37%
Miles 1955 1957, 1965 32,072 322 344 106.83%
Newman 1953 1957 29,808 276 261 94.57%
Orchard 1918 1948, 1956, 1987 57,933 414 441 106.52%
Poly 1952 1955,1960 35,209 299 322 107.69%
Ponderosa 1965 41,379 437 377 86.27%
Rose Park 1958 1962 30,276 299 292 97.66%
Sandstone 1978 41,714 437 476 108.92%
Washington 1948 1952,1962 36,064 276 266 96.38%

7-8 Schools
Castle Rock 1979 107,500 820 723 88.17%
Lewis & Clark 1956 1962 156,712 900 563 62.56%
Riverside 1963 1979 87,844 640 496 77.50%
Will James 1967 1974 94,120 690 518 75.07%

High Schools:
Career Center 1975 135,200 650 N/A N/A
Senior 1940 1953, 1967, 1974 232,789 1,600 1,708 106.75%
Skyview 1987 239,000 1,575 1,527 96.95%
West 1959 1962, 1966, 1975, 1976 219,662 1,690 1,914 113.25%

Administration:
Lincoln Center 1913 1921,1935,1951, 136,805

1964,1968,1985
Facilities 1958 24,000
Warehouse 1994 40,000

Vacant Land Sites:
Elem. - 35 acres
Elem. - 10 acres
H.S. - 40 acres

Source: District Records
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31LL1NGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
'ERCENTAGE OF STUDENTS WHO QUALIFIED FOR FREE AND REDUCED LUNCH
.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Table 24

Fiscal Year

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

:Jementarv Schools:

(-6 Schools:

Alkali Creek 9.2% 17.4% 19.0% 15.9% 22.2% 24.4% 20.1% 19.6% 19.2% 23.8%
Arrowhead 2.6% 2.3% 1.6% 1.9% 3.4% 4.2% 4.9% 5.2% 4.6% 5.3%
Beartooth (1) (2) N/A N/A NfA NfA N/A N/A 35.9% 41.8% 46.7% 40.1%
Bench 51.7% 52.2% 49.9% 40.9% 40.0% 49.2% 55.2% 60.3% 61.3% 59.0%
Big Sky 20.5% 20.7% 18.8% 17.3% 18.0% 18.5% 22.1% 22.7% 24.2% 27.5%
Bitterroot 34.9% 34.8% 38.6% 31.8% 37.8% 37.2% 35.1% 36.4% 42.3% 37.5%
Boulder 13.3% 20.1% 17.2% 11.2% 17.7% 19.2% 22.3% 23.7% 25.2% 23.8%
Broadwater 46.7% 45.1% 55.2% 41.5% 55.0% 45.5% 51.4% 57.1% 60.9% 61.0%
Burlington 27.8% 34.2% 38.9% 37.2% 38.8% 31.5% 35.8% 38.3% 40.6% 36.6%
Central Heights 28.2% 24.3% 36.4% 26.4% 33.0% 34.4% 32.8% 30.0% 35.7% 40.6%
Eagle Cliffs 13.2% 18.0% 14.9% 14.7% 18.5% 23.8% 21.5% 18.7% 19.0% 23.3%
Garfield (1) N/A NfA NfA NfA N/A N/A NfA N/A NfA N/A
Highland 38.9% 22.3% 26.2% 24.4% 25.7% 27.0% 31.0% 35.9% 35.2% 37.3%
McKinley 42.3% 69.3% 55.1% 49.8% 56.0% 60.1% 66.3% 65.1% 65.3% 65.3%
Meadowlark 20.8% 16.3% 20.0% 21.1% 20.6% 19.0% 28.8% 30.8% 33.8% 34.4%
Miles 35.7% 40.4% 38.7% 43.7% 44.5% 50.0% 46.3% 48.5% 53.1% 54.5%
Newman 66.2% 67.7% 77.3% 67.7% 62.6% 67.9% 75.0% 74.4% 74.1% 73.6%
Orchard 71.3% 88.3% 78.3% 78.0% 79.0% 78.7% 84.8% 85.6% 89.0% 83.3%
Poly 12.8% 14.0% 11.4% 14.2% 16.6% 14.5% 17.2% 21.8% 24.5% 22.0%
Ponderosa 30.4% 70.5% 63.6% 65.3% 68.0% 71.8% 74.3% 73.4% 74.1% 71.7%
Rimrock (1) (2) N/A NfA NfA NfA N/A N/A 36.8% N/A N/A N/A
Rose Park 23.5% 31.3% 26.9% 27.4% 35.2% 27.7% 29.1% 23.3% 33.1% 33.9%
Sandstone 27.6% 27.8% 30.5% 32.3% 35.8% 34.5% 35.0% 37.3% 37.1% 38.2%
Washington 66.1% 59.7% 56.8% 58.9% 64.9% 72.7% 66.5% 64.7% 73.4% 77.0%

7-8 Schools:

Castle Rock 22.0% 22.4% 27.9% 23.8% 25.9% 28.3% 28.5% 27.6% 31.2% 31.6%
Lewis & Clark 32.9% 34.5% 31.7% 29.8% 35.1% 37.0% 32.9% 34.2% 42.1% 39.5%
Riverside 51.3% 52.2% 49.5% 45.0% 58.0% 54.0% 51.8% 49.4% 55.1% 54.0%

12.3% 13.2% 15.0% 11.8% 16.9% 17.1% 11.2% 15.4% 18.6% 22.1%
c

Will James c

High Schools:

Senior 16.9% 18.3% 21.7% 16.3% 25.6% 22.6% 23.1% 24.1% 27.9% 30.5%
Skyview 12.9% 14.3% 16.8% 14.5% 16.7% 17.6% 17.5% 17.9% 23.0% 25.7%
West 9.6% 10.3% 13.0% 11.0% 12.4% 16.0% 12.5% 13.6% 18.8% 19.9%

(1) School closed
(2) School reopened

Source: District Records
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
AITENDENCE DATA
Las! Ten Fiscal Years

Average Number Belonging (ANB)

Table 25

Year Ended
June 30

October
Enrollment

Percent
Increase.

(Decrease)

Percent Percent of
Increase Prior Year's

ANB (Decrease) Enrollment

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

15,732
15,778
15,737
15,728
15,704
15,556
15,503
15,481
15,676
15,714

0.27
0.29

(0.26)
(0.06)
(0.15)
(0.94)
(0.34)
(0.14)
1.26
0.24

15,740
15,604
15,672
15,622
15,552
15,529
16,025
15,923
16,208
16,151

(0.49)
(0.86)
0.44

(0.32)
(0.45)
(0.15)
3.19

(0.64)
1.79

(0.35)

99.51
99.14

100.44
99.68
99.55
99.85

103.19
99.36

101.79
99.65

Source: District Records
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS Table 26

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE

I. Commercial Property
A. Policy#: KTK-CMB-545D602-3-10
B. Carrier: The Travelers Insuance Companies
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. Coverages: Buildings/Contents Incl Daylis Turf
E. Limits: $413,103,500

II. Commercial General liability
A. Policy#: GLA399387205
B. Carrier. American Zurich Insurance Company
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. Coverages; General liability, Sexual Molestation, Employee Benefits
E. Limits: $1,000,000 per occurrence; $2,000,000 aggregate

III. Commercial Auto
A. Policy#: GLA399387205
B. Carrier: American Zurich Insurance Company
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. Coverages: Automobile liability and Physical Damage
E. Limits: $1,000,000

IV. Boiler and Machinery Policy
f

A. Policy#: BNS 2702117
B. Carrier. The Cincinnati Insurance Company
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. Limits: Based on property values

V. Environmentai Liability
A. Policy#: 569600
B. Carrier: lronshore Specialty Insurance Company
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. Limits: $1,000,000 per occurrence; $2,000,000 aggregate

VI. Commercial Excess Liability
A. Policy#: 82A2UBOOOO023-05
B. Carrier. American Alternative Insurance Corporation
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. Limits: $10,000,000

VII. Crime
A. Policy#: 104123769
B. Carrier. S!. Paul Travelers
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. Limits: $100,000 and $500,000 depending on coverage ,

VIII. Educators Legal Liability
A. Policy #: 21441989
B. Carrier: National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. Limits: $4,000,000 aggregate

IX. Privacy Protection Policy
A. Policy#: EONG24871873002
B. Carrier: Illinois Union Insurance Company
C. Policy Period: 12/10/10-7/1/11
D. limits: $1,000,000

X. Tenant User Liability
A. Policy#: PHPK591489
B. Carrier: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-7/1/11
D. limits: $1,000,000/2,000,000

XI. Workers' Compensation
A. Policy#: N/A
B. Carrier: Workers' Compensation Risk Retention Program
C. Policy Period: 7/1/10-6/30/11 -117-
D. Limits: $1,500,000
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with GovernmentAuditing

Standards

Board of Trustees
Billings Public Scbool District
Billings, Montana

We have audited the financial statements of Billings Public School District as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 2011. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Billings Public School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Billings
Public School District's internal control over fmancial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Billings Public School District's internal control over
fmancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Billings Public
School District's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified.
However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses
and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be
a material weakness: # I 1-1.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs to be significant deficiencies: #11-2, #11-3.

www.eidebeilly.com
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Billings Public School District's
financial statements are free ofmaterial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item #11-2.

Billings Public School District's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit Billings Public School
District's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use ofmanagement, the Board of Trustees, others
within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Billings, Montana
December 15, 2011
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Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct .and Material Effect on Each
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A­

133

Board of Trustees
Billings Public School District
Billings, Montana

Compliance

We have audited Billings Public School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-I33 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of Billings Public School District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 201l.
Billings Public School District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of Billings Public School District's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on Billings Public School District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States ofAmerica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-l33
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Billings Public School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Billings Public
School District's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Billings Public School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an
instance of noncompliance with those requirements, which are described in the accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost as
item #11-5.

www.eidebailly.com
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Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Billings Public School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to federal programs. In phuming and performiug our audit, we considered
Billings Public School District's internal control over compliance with the requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Billings Public School
District's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program wi11 not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies as described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items # 11-4 and # 11-5. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Billings Public School District's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in
the accompanying schedule offmdings and questioned costs. We did not audit Billings Public
School District's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, The Board of Trustees,
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Billings, Montana
December IS, 20 II
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BILLINGS PLlBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAl AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Due from), Due (Due from), Due
Federal Pass Through to, Deferred or to, Deferred or

Federal GrantorlPass Through GrantorlProgram CFDA Entity Identifying Award Fund Balance 'Fund Balance
Tille or Cluster Title Number Number Amount July1,2010 Cash Receipts Expenditures Other June 30, 2011

U.S. Department of Education:
Direct programs:

Indian Educatlon-Grants to LEA's 84.060 S060A092167 $ 241,398 $ (4,767) $ 4,767 $ $ $
Indian Education-Grants to LEA's 84.060 S060A102167 246,571 246,571 (246,571)

CFDA subtotal (4,767) 251,338 (246,571)

Fund for the Improvement of Education 84.215 U215K100152 100,000 99,010 (99,010)

99,010 (99,010)

Total Direct Programs (4,767) 350,348 (345,581)

Passed Through State Office of Public
Instruction:

Adult Education-State Grant Program 84.002 5609655611 BG 132,943 132,943 (132,943)

CFDA subtotal 132,943 (132,943)

Title I Grants to LEA's 84.010 5609653110 4,261,708 (76,570) 160,842 (84,272)
Title J Grants to LEA's 84.010 5609653111 4,182,602 3,150,060 (3,304,682) (154,622)
Title I Improvement Award Grant to LEA's 84.010 oJ, 4,000 4,000 4,000
Title I Grants to LEA's, Recovery Act 84.389 5609659110 2,926,737. (23,117) 1,753,200 (1,905,758) (175,675)

CFDA subtotal (99,687) 5,068,102 (5,294,712) (326,297)

Vo Ed-Basic Grants to Stales 84.048 5609668111BG 331,120 313,483 (331,120) (17,637)
Vo Ed-Basic Grants to States 84.048 56096681106G 280,412 (6,645) 6,645

CFDA subtotal (6,645) 320,128 (331,120) (17,637)

Special Education-Grants to States 84.027 5609657710AlLO 4,177,261 43,530 (43,530)
Special Education-Grants to States 84.027 5609657711AlLO 4,494,2~7 1,746,290 (2,018,362) (272,072)
Special Education-Preschool Grants 84.173 5609657911ALLO 123,019 108,000 (123,019) (15,019)
Special Education-Grants to States,
Recovery Act 84.391 5609659210 3,953,288 (13,724) 2,233,567 (2,501,532) {281 ,689)
Special Educatlon--Preschool Grants,
Recovery Ad 84.392 5609659510 123,782 (3,066) 77,100 (-93,300) (19,266)

CFDA subtotal 26,740 4,164,957 (4,736,213) (43,530) (588,046)

Safe and Drug Free Schools and
Communities-State Grants 84.186 5609651610 161,729 (5,344) 5,410 (66)
Safe and Drug Free Schools and
Communities-State Grants 84.186 5609651611 37,175 19,200 (35,323) (16,123)

CFDA subtotal (5,344) 24,610 (35,389) (16,123)

Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196 5609655711 59,000 46,990 (59,000) (12,010)

CFDA subtotal 46,990 (59,000) (12,010)

Educational Technology Slate Grants 84.318 5609656011 21,371 15,314 (21,344) (6,030)
Educational TeGhnology Slate Grants 84.318 5609656010 58,530 (2,045) 2,045

CFDA subtqtal (2,045) 17,359 (21,344) (6,030)

English Language Acqulsllion Grants 84.365 5609654110 26,643 (6,625) 6.701 (76)
Engfish Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 5609654111 23,837 (12,083) (12,083)
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 5609654110[ 2,647 564 (564)

CFDA subtotal (6,061) 6,701 (12.723) (12,083)

Mathematics and Science Partnerships 84.366 5609651510 50,000 (2,767) 18,000 (15,233)
Mathematics and Science Partnerships 84.366 5609651511 50,000 20,100 (48,044) (27,944)
Mathematics and Science Partnerships 84.366 5609651511 50,000 20,200 (38,567) (18.36D

CFDA subtotal (2,767) 58,300 (101,844) (46,311)

Improving Teacher Quality Slate Grants 84.367 5609651410 1,286,484 54,956 (35,809) (19,147)
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 5609651411 1,207,263 916,550 (1,200,926) (284,376)

CFDA subtotal 54,956 916,550 (1,236,735) (19,147) (284,376)
Education for Homeless ChDdren and Youth,
Recovery Act 84.387 5609655710 80,040 3,515 (3,515)

CFDA subtotal 3,515 (3,515)

State Fiscal Stabnization Fund (SFSF) ~

Education State Grants, Recovery Act 84.394 NfA 3,679,706 3,679,706 (3,679,706)

CFDA subtotal 3,679,706 (3,679,706)

Education Jobs Fund, Recovery Act 84.410 NfA 3,075,777 3,075,7n (3,075,777)

CFDA subtotal 3,075,m (3,075,777)
Passed Through Slate Department of Public
Health and Human Services:

Special Education-Grants for Infants and
Famines 84.181 10-143-1800 207,811 207,811 (207,811)

CFDA subtotal \. 207,811 (207,811)
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BILLINGS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Fortlle Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal GrantorlPass Through Grantor/Program
Title or Cluster Title

(Due from), Due (Due from), Due
Federal Pass Through to, Deferred or to, Deferred or
CFDA Entity Identifying Award Fund Balance ." Fund Balance

Number __-,N""cm~bo,,-' Am,,,,Oo"u~"',---__-----'Jo"'-',C''''"'"o''-,"o__,C~,~,h"--,R"'eoe,;p<ts=-__Exp",,o',-"~d"itu~re-,,-' -,O~lh""c'__ -"J"oo",,--,,'o","',O"'"'_

Special Education-Grants for Infants and
Farnnies, Recovery Act 84.393 10-1 03-00005 93,024 76,454 (76,454)

CFDA subtotal

Total Pass Through Programs (37,338)

76,454

17,796,388

(76,454)

(19,005,286) (62,677) (1,308,913)

Total U.S. Department of Education $ (42,105) $ 18,146,736 $ (19,350,867) $ (62,677) $ (1,308,913)

u.s. Department of Agriculture:

Passed Through State Office of pubnc
Instruction:

Child Nutrition Cluster.
Non-.Cash Assistance (Commodities):

National School Lunch Program
Summer Food Service Program for
Children

10.555

10.559

NfA

NfA

324,130 $

"4

$ 324,130 $

"4

(324,130) $

(314)

$

(13,285)

(324,444)324,444

492,298
2,161,480

(492,298)
(2,174,765)

____=__ 9"7"',0""''--- ---!I,,97,,,0,,''''-,) __'__ __'__

____--'- -"2"-'"50",7,,9"" 1"",,,7,,64,,,0"'7=6) ---' -'-1'"',,,2,,85'-1.)

3,075,235 (3,088,520) (13,285)

97,013

492,298
2,174,693

NlA
NfA

NlA

10.553
10.555

10.559

CFDA subtotal

Non-Cash Assistance Subtotal
Cash Assistance:

School Breakfast Program
National Schoo! lunch Program
Summer Food Service Program for
Children

Cash Assistance Subtotal

Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program

CFDA subtotal

10.582 NlA 158,185 "158,185 (158,185)

158,185 (158,185)

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ $ 3,233,420 $ (3,246,705) $ $ (13,285)

79,500 ---"-$_~5"4",5,,9"-3__'$'--__---'_~$'______~1,,5"'4,,,59,,'''-)---,,-$ ~,--~$,_____ -=--

54,593 (54,593)

U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services:
Passed Through State Department of Public
Health and Human Services:

Public Health Emergency Preparedness,
Recovery Act

CFDA subtotal

TANF Emergency Fund, Recovery Act

CFDA subtotal
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services

93.069

93.714

NfA

1102 3480 003 20,000

$ 54,593 $

13,075

13,075

13,075 $

(13(075)

(13,075)

Total Federal Awards $ 12,488 $ 21,393,231 ",$~dI2",2",6:;:65""g'4,,0~) 4$~dl",62"""fJ7",7b) 4$dl"1,,,32,,2,,,"g9~8)

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWAADS

NOTE A - SIGN!FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activily of Billings Public Schools and is presented on a modified cash basis (expenditures include
accounts payable and encumbrances). The information in this schedule Is presented in accordance the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non­
profits Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented In, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE B - SCHOOLWIDE mLE I PROGRAM

Billings Publ1c Schools operates a schoolwide ntie I program. Since schoolwide programs are not a separate federal progrem as defined on OMS Circular A-133, amounts used in the
schooJwide programs are included in the total expenditures of the program contributing the funds in the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards. The programs included in
Billings Publ1c Schools schoolwide ntle I program include TrUe I, nile n, ntle IV Competltlve, and ntle IX.

NOTE C - FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Non-monetary assistance is reported in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards at the fair market value of commodifies received and disbursed.

NOTE D - RELATIONSHIP TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Federal award revenues are included in the basic financial statements as part of federal revenues in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-GovemmentaJ
Funds.

The following is a reconciliation of cash receipts on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards to federal revenues reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Governmental Funds.

Cash receipts
Retumed to grantor
Revenue accrual adjustments
Federal revenues not subject to single audit

$ 21,393,231
(62,677)

1,334,686
298,800

Federal revenues $ 22,964,040
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Billings Public School District #2
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section I-8ummary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over fmancial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major program:

Any audit fmdings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)?

Identification ofmajor programs:

CFDA Numbers(s)

84.010,84.389
84.027,84.173,84.391,84.392

84.367

84.394

84.410

84.181,84.393

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs?

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unqualified

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

Unqualified

Yes

Name of Federal
Program or Cluster

Title I, Part A (Title I)
Special Education

Grants to States
(IDEA Part B)

Improving Teacher
Quality State Grants
(Title II)

State Fiscal Stabilization
Fund (SPSP)

Education Jobs Fund
(Ed Jobs)

Special Education
Grants for Infants
and Families (IDEA
Part C)

$679,957

No
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Billings Public School District #2
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 20 I I

Section I1- Financial Statement Findings

Finding #11-1 Pledge Receivable Audit Adjustment

Criteria: The School District is accountable and responsible for the safeguarding of its assets,
including effective internal controls that are designed and in place to prevent, or detect and
correct errors and misstatements in a timely manner.

Condition: During our audit, it was found that pledge receivables totaling approximately
$80,000 related to various projects that were considered to be uncollectible were included as
receivables to the School District.

Effect: A material audit adjusting journal entry of approximately $80,000 was made to reduce
the pledge receivable.

Cause: The School District did not have a policy and or procedure in place to ensure that
pledge receivables were being collected and written down as considered necessary. This is
considered to be a material weakness in the School District's internal control.

Recommendation: We recommend that management implement a review and reconciliation
process for pledge receivables which would include a valuation of individual pledges
receivable.

Management Corrective Action Plan: Management will look at revising policy or procedure
to include projects being started once all pledges are received. A review and reconciliation of
any future pledges will be implemented as an internal control.

Finding #11-2 New Hire Reporting

Criteria: Montana Code Annotated (MCA) Section 40-5-922 states "Every Montana
employer is required to report a minimum amount of infonnation on each new employee
hired or rehired on or after October I, 1997. This infonnation includes: Employer: Name,
Address, Federal Employer Identification Number; Employee: Name, Address, Social
Security #, Date of Hire".

Condition: During our audit, it was noted the School District has not followed the
requirement of reporting employees hired and rehired to the Montana State Department of
Revenue.

Effect: The School District's lack of reporting employees hired and rehired places the School
District in noncompliance with the State of Montana.

Cause: The School District did not have a policy and or procedure in place to ensure that the
reporting is completed within the State guidelines. This is considered to be a significant
deficiency in internal control.

Recommendation: To ensure the School District's compliance within the guidelines of
reporting the hiring and rehiring of an employee with 20 days of hire, we recommend the
implementation ofnew procedures for reporting.

Management Corrective Action Plan: The district is now filing the new hire reporting to the
State ofMontana within 20 days of hire. The state has verified that the district is in
compliance with appropriate reporting and the human resources department will ensure
reporting is maintained for all new hires. A procedure will be put in place to address this plan.
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Finding #11-3

Billings Public School District #2
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Commitment of Fnnd Balance Resources for Special Revenue Funds

Criteria: The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund type Definitions requires, among other things, all
state and local governmental entities to adopt a policy (resolution) committing fund balance
resources for special revenue funds prior to the close of the fiscal year.

Condition: During our audit, it was noted that the resolution for committing fund balance
resources for special revenue funds was not approved by the board prior to the end of the
fiscal year.

Effect: The School District was required to have a resolution in place as ofJune 30, 2011 that
wouldcornmit fund balance resources for special revenue funds.

Cause: The School District did not have a policy and or procedure in place to ensure that the
elements ofnew GASB pronouncements are being implemented in a timely manner. This is
considered to be a significant deficiency in internal control.

Recommendation: To ensure the proper irnplementation ofnew GASB pronouncements, we
recommend the School District implement additional training and education in GASB related
topics.

Management Corrective Action Plan: At the regular school board meeting on June 20,2011
the board adopted procedure 7000 P-2 on financial management to begin the GASB 54
satisfaction. At the regular school board meeting on October 17, 2011 the board adopted the
GASB 54 resolution on Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund type Defmitions.
This resolution was put into board policy under series 7000 as procedure 3. This procedure
specifically states how funds will be committed for the district. The district has also
purchased supplemental GASB online material to use as a resource for training and
education.
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Billings Public School District #2
Schedule DfFindings and Questioned Costs

Year Euded June 30, 2011

Section III - Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding #11-4 Approval of Salaries in SFSF Grant

CFDA 84.394. 84.397; State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF)
Department of Education; Grant Year 2011

Criteria: "The A-I 02 Common Rule requires that non-Federal entities receiving Federal
awards (i.e., auditee management) establish and maintain internal control designed to
reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance
requirements the objectives of internal control, and certain characteristics of internal control
that, when present and operating effectively, may ensure compliance with 131 program
requirements. Circular A-B3 defines internal control over federal programs as follows:
Internal control pertaining to the compliance requirements for federal programs (internal
control over federal programs) means a process - affected by an entity's management and
other personnel - designed to provide reasonable assurance for the achievement ofthe
following objectives for federal programs:
(I) Transactions are properly recorded and accounted for to:

(i) Permit the preparation of reliable financial statements and Federal reports;
(ii) Maintain accountability over assets; and

(iii) Demonstrate compliance with laws, regulations, and other compliance requirements;
(2) Transactions are executed in compliance with:
(i) Laws, regulations, and the provisions ofcontracts or grant agreements that could have a
direct and material effect on a Federal program; and
(ii) Any other laws and regulations that are identified in the compliance supplements; and
(3) Funds, property, and other assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition. "

Condition: In fiscal year 2011 the District received separate ARRA funds that were used to
pay for guidance counselors and other types of salaries. The allocation ofthese employees
whose salaries were paid for with these funds was not appropriately approved.

Questioned costs: None

Effect: Ineffective controls will not detect or correct errors in a timely manner that could
result in potential disallowed costs.

Cause: Management is not following or conveying the importance of effective internal
controls to staff as noted in the payroll issues noted above. This is considered to be a
significant deficiency in internal control.

Recommendation: We recommend the School District implement proper oversight and
training to all individuals involved with the federal grant expenditures to ensure that the
appropriate approvals are being made on a timely basis.

Management Corrective Action Plan: The district will work to improve internal controls
involving approval of salaries. The management is currently approving all cash advance
and/or reimbursement requests before it is submitted to opr. The requests are prepared
electronically, entered by staff then reviewed, approved and submitted by the management.
Also epar forms will be completed in the future for any shift of salaries. There are no SFSF
funds in FY20l2. All salaries have been moved back to the general fund for these positions.
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Finding #11-5

Billings Public School District #2
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Docnmentation of Time and Effort in Title II grant

CFDA 84.367; Improving Teacher Quality State Grants (Title II)
Department of Education; Grant Year 2011

Criteria: The Office ofManagement and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87, Attachment B,
paragraph 8.h.(4) and (5) requires that an employee who works solely on multiple activities
or cost objectives must maintain time and effort distribution records related to the federal
program or cost objective and each other program or cost objective supported by consolidated
federal funds or other revenue sources.

Condition: Two of the 21 teachers with salaries being paid for with Title II funds did not have
adequate documentation of time and effort.

Questioned costs: There are $49,457 of questioned costs in the Title II grant.

Effect: Ineffective controls over the documentation of time and effort will not detect or
correct errors in a timely manner that could result in potential disallowed costs.

Cause: Management is not following or conveying the importance of effective internal
controls to staff related to the documentation of time and effort. This is considered to be a
significant deficiency in internal control.

Recommendation: We recommend the School District implement proper oversight and
training to all individuals involved with the federal grant expenditures to ensure that the
appropriate time and effort documentation is being made on a timely basis.

Management Corrective Action Plan: The district will ensure checks and balances when
documenting time and effort. The management will provide oversight and guidance to
properly monitor the time and effort ofpersonnel being paid out ofTitle II. Management will
review which individuals are being paid out of these funds and maintain the proper
documentation.
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2010-01

Billings Public School District #2
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Cash Management for Title I, Title II, IDEA Part B, SFSF

Finding: Cash draws were in excess of expenditures for certain months

Status: The School District has fully implemented procedures for eliminating excess cash draws.

Auditor Response: Fully implemented

2010-02 ProcurementiSuspensionJDebarment for Title I, IDEA

Finding: Excluded Parties List System (EPLS) checks were not being performed on contracts
entered into by the School District.

Status: The School District has fully implemented procedures for performing EPLS Checks on
all contracts.

Auditor Response: Fnlly implemented

2010-03 Allowable Costs for Title 1, SFSF (Approval of Expenditures)

Finding: There was no timely documentation of approval for salaries charged to SFSF grant and
purchasing policy was not being followed for warehouse purchases.

Status: The School District has implemented procedures for following warehouse purchase
policy and has not fully implemented controls to document approval for use of SFSF funds for
salaries.

Auditor Response: Not fully implemented. See current year Finding #11-4

2010-04 ARRA Reporting for Title I, IDEA Part B, SFSF

Finding: There was no timely supervisor review of information submitted for American
Recovery and Reinvestroent Act (ARRA) reporting.

Status: The School District has fully implemented procedures for performing timely supervisor
review of ARRA reports.

Auditor Response: Fully implemented

2010-05 Davis Bacon Certification of Payroll- IDEA Part B

Finding: Documentation ofDavis Bacon requirements was not available for certain construction
projects with third party.

Status: The School District has fully implemented procedures for fulfilling Davis Bacon
requirements on contacts.

Auditor Response: Fully implemented
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